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Expanding the world's knowledge of
magnesium and ecological fertilisers
markets in the 21* green era.

One of the leading and largest vertically
integrated businesses covering magnesium
and ecological fertilisers to achieve green
technological innovations and operational
efficiencies and effectiveness in Asia.
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HEAREBEH LB EEIERAR AR ([A  The directors (the “Directors” and individually a “Director”) of Century
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Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) up to the date of
this report are as follow:

EXg Board of Directors

HITES Executive Directors

WX E (FE) Chi Wen Fu (Chairman)

ot Shum Sai Chit

PUE=P2 Chi Bi Fen

FHITES Non-Executive Director
HRE Guo Mengyong

BYFHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors
BRI 3T Kwong Ping Man

215k Liu Hoi Keung

Bk Sheng Hong

AEME Company Secretary

Bt (& Luk Sai Wai, Simon

ZEg Committees

EREESg Audit Committee

BN (ZEEE/E) Kwong Ping Man (Committee Chairman)
2R Liu Hoi Keung

Bt Sheng Hong

FMESS Remuneration Committee
BRX(ZEEE/E) Kwong Ping Man (Committee Chairman)
J2EE5 L Liu Hoi Keung

ot Shum Sai Chit

Bt Sheng Hong

REZESE Nomination Committee
WXE(ZEEEE) Chi Wen Fu (Committee Chairman)

BB R 3T Kwong Ping Man

B3k Sheng Hong

BB Head Office

BE Unit 3907, Floor 39, COSCO Tower
HPIRERAEF 18355 183 Queen’s Road Central

FRiR K E 3912 3907 & Hong Kong

B - 28022165 Telephone: 2802 2165

EH : 28022697 Fax: 2802 2697

TH ©  ir@centurysunshine.com.hk E-mail: ir@centurysunshine.com.hk
#84k - www.centurysunshine.com.hk Website: www.centurysunshine.com.hk
BB ED Auditors

B E S HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng

EERF T RTAD Chartered Accountants

BAMEGETAD Certified Public Accountants
FEERBIT Principal Bankers

BERITRNDER QA
BIEIRTTER AR
ERRIT(FR)ARAA

PR TR RIT (M) BRAR
RERITARAF
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China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd

Chong Hing Bank Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
United Overseas Bank Limited
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Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Cayman) Limited

Butterfield House

68 Fort Street

P.O. Box 609
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Listing Information

Listing Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”)

Stock code 509

Key Dates
28 March 2012 Announcement of 2011 final results
14 May 2012 to Closure of register of members
17 May 2012 (for annual general meeting)
(both days inclusive)
17 May 2012 Annual general meeting
23 May 2012 to Closure of register of members
29 May 2012 (for 2011 final dividend)
(both days inclusive)
28 June 2012 Proposed payments of 2011 final

dividend

Share Information

Company’s shares of HK$0.02 each 2,578,908,333
(the “Shares”) in issue Shares
(31 December 2011)
Market capitalisation (31 December 2011) HK$559,622,023
Board lot size 5,000 Shares
Earnings Per Share for 2011
Basic HK3.74 cents
Diluted HK3.74 cents
Dividend Per Share for 2011
Interim HKS$NIL
Final (proposed) HKO0.35 cents

Share Registrar & Transfer Offices

Principal:

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Cayman) Limited

Butterfield House

68 Fort Street

P.O. Box 609

Grand Cayman KY1-1107
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Floor 26, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Registered Office
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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BE12831BLEECHERE
FINANCIAL SUMMARY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

2011 2010 2009 2008
TRT TAT BT TAT
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
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(604,555)
158,839

82,701
(35,242)
(72,722)
(16,413)

117,163

(16,045)
101,118

3.741licents
3.741licents

2,070,412
(588,387)

1,482,025
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FINANCIAL RATIO AS AT 31 DECEMBER

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Bt Notes:

1 RABHA ANEEFREF IR 1. Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company/Shareholders’ equity
2. FRmF, BERE 2. Profit for the year/Total assets
3. BB s 3. Total borrowings/Total equity
4 BRATS R R F B F S ADE B R X 4, Profit before income tax and interest expense/Interest expense
5 MBEE/ TBHERE 5. Current assets/Current liabilities

N RAREE ABEFEREF
REVENUE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE

TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
FiB e TET
HK$'000 HK$’000
1% 13% 763,394
31% /\ /\ 96,541
/\ 437,900 e 72,669
434,155 . 65,700 :

330,899
43,591

30,613

1
Vil i
Year Year
TOTAL EQUITY MARGINS
FHBTT . Bo
HK$'000 18% ° %
60, 4%
- 1,482,025
1,335,438 37.5%
1,127,574
1,081,495 -
998,891 081,
0,
19.5% - 18.4% 18.2% 20e
. 12.9% 13.2%
5.8% 8.7%
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On behalf of the board of Directors of the Company, | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2011 for shareholders’ review.

The Group reported a record performance on the strength and
expansion of the magnesium alloy and the ecological fertiliser
businesses in 2011. The overall revenue of the Group increased by
approximately HK$269,623,000 in 2011, representing a year-on-
year growth of approximately 54.6%. It has indicated that the Group
achieved a promising success from company re-engineering in the
past three years. Company architecture has been distinctively
developed to align and maximise its resources and capabilities,
namely technological advance and product innovations.

Since 2008, the Group has devoted on research and development
of its new growth driver, magnesium alloy. The Group is now a
leading one-stop provider with exclusive rights to utilise a number of
patented technologies in its magnesium alloy productions, offering
an integrated platform from mining, smelting, ingot manufacturing,
alloy processing, to distribution in the PRC. With its competitive
advantages and solid business strategies, the Group is expecting a
robust growth and return from the magnesium alloy business in
2012.

The Group enjoys the exclusivity in applying a number of patented
technologies on magnesium alloy productions. Some of the patents
related to rare earth have already been adopted by National
Aeronautics and Space projects. In August 2010, China Mining
Association conferred the Group’s magnesium plant situated at
China Magnesium Industrial Park in Hunjiang District, Baishan City,
Jilin Province as the first “Demonstration Complex for China
Magnesium Industry”. Its magnesium alloy production plant has also
been accredited as one of the forty comprehensive demonstration
bases for applications of mining resources by Ministry of Land and
Resources, and Ministry of Finance of the PRC in October 2011.
Recently, Baishan Municipal Committee of People’s Government of
Jilin Municipality honoured the Group as one of the “Top 10
Enterprises in Science and Technology” in February 2012. | believe
that the Group is well-positioned at the forefront of magnesium alloy
development to tap into the new rising opportunity.
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According to the Development Plan on New Materials Industry
under the 12th Five-Year Plan of the PRC, magnesium alloy has
been enlisted to be a key development among minor metals due to
its outstanding attributes. As the 21st green material which is the
lightest of all structural metals with high strength, magnesium alloy
has received increasing popularity and has been utilised across
industries. It is widely used in aerospace, military, transportation,
and high-tech applications due to its outstanding and reliable
properties. This will be the trend in minor metals development.

In 2011, the Group’s core business — ecological fertiliser also
recorded a steady growth. Driven by the continuous development of
the PRC’s rural system in the past decade, the government has
been focusing on the rural economy and agriculture by introducing
favourable agricultural policies. To capture such enormous market
potentials, the Group has proactively developed a new product —
microbial silicon magnesium fertiliser. It is tailored for China’s soil
that is generally lack of silicon. With a serpentine mine in Jiangsu
Province and over a decade of experience in manufacturing and
channel marketing, the Group has significant advantages in
development and production of the new environmental friendly
product. The production starts in 2012, | believe that the Group’s
product portfolio, and hence its competitiveness, will be further
enhanced.

The Group has always strived for stable and sustainable
development as its long-term goal. With its comprehensive
resources, technological advance and R&D capability, the Group is
confident to adhere to its vision of sustainable growth. The Group
has created a vertically integrated platform for both magnesium alloy
and ecological fertiliser which will fuel a continual enhancement in
the Group’s profitability and generate lucrative returns to its
shareholders.

Chi Wen Fu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2012
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Business Review and Outlook

In 2011, the Group achieved encouraging results through
optimisation of business portfolio, modification of product structure
and expansion in income channels. The two principal businesses of
the Group, i.e. magnesium alloy business and ecological fertiliser
business, both recorded significant growth. During the period under
review, total business revenue grew by approximately
HK$269,623,000 when comparing to 2010, representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately 54.6%.

Magnesium Alloy Business

The Group has invested lavishly in the R&D of magnesium alloy
business since 2008. During the year under review, revenue
generated from this segment was approximately HK$97,686,000,
accounted for about 12.8% of our total revenue.

The operation of the magnesium alloy project in Hunjiang District,
Baishan City, Jilin Province, the PRC commenced in July 2011. The
Group is benefitted from abundant quality dolomite mineral
resources, an upstream raw material, and advanced technology in
production of magnesium products. A vertical value chain that
integrates production flow from exploitation and processing of
dolomite to production, including magnesium ingots, magnesium
alloys and middle alloy products has been developed. Also, the
Group has exclusive rights of using a number of patented
technologies in respect of production and enhancement of high-
performance rare earth magnesium alloys and rare earth magnesium
middle alloys. It has provided a solid foundation for the Group’s
expansion in the magnesium alloy business.

The Group’s magnesium alloy project is located at China
Magnesium Industrial Park in Hunjiang District, Baishan City, Jilin
Province, the PRC. In August 2010, it was accredited as the first
“Demonstration Complex for China Magnesium Industry” by China
Mining Association. The Group’s magnesium alloy production arm
was included in the first batch of 40 comprehensive demonstration
bases for applications of mining resources by Ministry of Land and
Resources, and Ministry of Finance of the PRC in October 2011. In
February 2012, the Group was awarded as “Top 10 Enterprises in
Science and Technology” by Baishan Municipal Committee of
People’s Government of Jilin Municipality. As a member of “Strategic
Alliance for Technological Innovations of Magnesium Industry” in Jilin
Province enables the Group to capitalise on the R&D capabilities
supported by Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry, Chinese
Academy of Sciences. Furthermore, the Group has signed a long-
term agreement with Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry. The
cooperation not only facilitates transformation of technological
innovations, but also provides impetus for sustainable growth of the
Group.
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Magnesium Alloy Business (Continued)

Magnesium alloy is an environmental-friendly metal which is the
lightest of all structural metals with high strength, magnesium alloy
has received increasing popularity and has been utilised across
industries. It is widely used in aerospace, military, transportation,
and high-tech applications due to its outstanding and reliable
properties. This will be the trend in minor metals development. The
Group is confident that the growing applications of magnesium alloy
present immense opportunities for its business expansion.

Ecological Fertiliser Business

The Group’s ecological fertiliser business has reached its new
heights through strong brand awareness and market domination.
Orders have been growing substantially with expansion in sales
network. Revenue from ecological fertiliser business increased by
approximately 22.9% to HK$594,822,000, accounted for
approximately 77.9% of the Group’s overall revenue. Revenue from
compound fertilisers and organic fertilisers soared by approximately
30.2% and 9.5% respectively, accounted for approximately 67.3%
and 23.8% of the revenue from this segment. The average selling
price and sales volume of compound fertilisers improved by
approximately 19.7% and 8.8% respectively. Average selling price
of organic fertilisers went down by approximately 1.6%, versus, an
increase of approximately 11.3% in sales volume.

The Group has further boosted its efficiency by optimising product
structure. In January 2011, the Group disposed the loss-making
pesticide business and achieved one-off gain of approximately
HK$3,800,000. In 2010, the Group expanded its Jiangsu plant on
production capacity, to cater the increase in sales volume and
market share in this segment. The Group also dedicated more effort
in product development with a promising margin and tremendous
market potential, namely silicon magnesium compound fertilisers
(“silicon magnesium fertilisers”). The core attribute is to improve sail
conditions for cultivation. This new product will considerably,
enhance the overall profit margin of the ecological fertiliser business.
The Group has completed the R&D of the silicon magnesium
fertilisers and production will be commenced in the first half of 2012.
According to a study from Chinese Academy of Agricultural
Sciences, out of 450 million mu rice paddy fields in the PRC, about
50% or more are low in silicon, and about 19% are low in
magnesium, equivalent to a sum of 23 million hectares. The potential
demand for the silicon magnesium fertilisers will be about 40 million
tonnes per year, indicating an enormous market potential. The
Group owns a high quality serpentine mine, ensuring a stable supply
of the key raw materials for production. In addition, the Group is
equipped with technology and capacity necessary for production
establishing an effective integration of upstream raw materials and
downstream products. This has reinforced competitiveness of the
Group and fuelled its long-term growth.
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Other Businesses
The Group’s other businesses include metallurgical flux and financial
services, which accounted for approximately 5.8% and 3.5% of the
total revenue respectively.

The high quality serpentine mineral reserves provide not only core
raw materials for production of the silicon magnesium fertilisers, but
also indispensable auxiliary materials for iron and steel smelting. The
metallurgical flux business has sustained stable distribution channels
and customer base, contributing consistently to the Group’s
revenue. During the year, revenue from metallurgical flux business
was about HK$44,282,000, accounted for approximately 5.8% of
total revenue. With the success in the R&D of the silicon magnesium
fertilisers, economic value of serpentine mine will gradually be
reflected. The Group plans to expand its scale of production and
channels to further utilise and enjoy economic benefits from the
serpentine mine.

The Group has been engaging in financial services business since
the completion of acquiring Sunshine Partners Financial Holdings
Limited in late August 2010. In relation to brokerage services, the
first branch was established in North Point, Hong Kong in June
2011. A fair amount of resources were spent on promoting its
business and product development, aiming to broaden customer
network more effectively. The financial services business is in steady
development. During the year, revenue from the financial services
business accounted for approximately 3.5% of total revenue.

Revenue

Revenue of the Group in 2011 was approximately HK$763,394,000
(2010: HK$493,771,000), representing a growth of about 54.6%.
Ecological fertiliser business, magnesium alloy business,
metallurgical flux business and financial service business accounted
for approximately 77.9%, 12.8%, 5.8% and 3.5% respectively.

The significant rise in revenue was mainly attributable to the increase
in average selling price and sales volume of compound fertilisers.
Besides, the magnesium alloy business that commenced production
in July 2011 and the metallurgical flux business acquired in
December 2010 both contributed to an overall growth in the
Group’s revenue.
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Cost of Sales

Cost of sales for 2011 amounted to approximately
HK$604,555,000, an increase of around 49.7% over last year,
among which, approximately 85.1%, 12.0% and 2.9% was
attributable to ecological fertiliser business, magnesium alloy
business and metallurgical flux business respectively (2010: all
attributable to ecological fertiliser business).

Material cost remained the key component of cost of sales of
ecological fertiliser business. During the year, the Group was
threatened by increasing price of raw materials. In response to this,
the Group had increased prices of our products and was also
actively developing high-value new products and vertical integration
of business.

For magnesium alloy business, materials and accessories were the
main cost components. Dolomite extracted from our Baishan mine
was processed, then sent to our factory for smelting and production
of magnesium products for selling.

For metallurgical flux business, serpentines extracted from the mine
were sold with simple processing required. As such, its cost of
production was relatively low and mainly comprised of depreciation
for non-current assets and amortisation for mining rights.

Gross Profit

Consolidated gross profit margin for 2011 was 20.8% and
consolidated gross profit of the Group in 2011 amounted to
approximately HK$158,839,000, representing an increase of 76.9%
over 2010.

During the year, the average price of organic fertilisers had been
downward adjusted by about 1.6% for the sake of expanding
market share. Also, accompanied by inflated material costs of
organic fertilisers, it led to the gross profit margin of ecological
fertiliser business decreased from 16.5% to 13.5%.

Gross profit margins of magnesium alloy business and metallurgical
flux business were around 25.7% and 60.4% respectively.

13



HREAREZRARATF
CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

BEENWR D

Management Discussion and Analysis

HERTHEEEHR
HERTISHER AL B35242,0008 T X246
R 20106 12 AT IR B R IR B S T e A2 2 18 8)
B A #%)57.4%5%20,236,000/8 70 © £REE XK
2B E M4 13.1% 5 4,605,000/8 T °

BT ZEERMSHESH410,401,0008 7T ' 9
FIREEREERRER  GINGEREBELRESAS
ETEFEL  S15487.0% * 7.6% 1 5.4% °

THRAX

TR X 4 A268,4130008 T * 8EF EF L
26.9% - BHH L LA EEEEHHEORSE %
BReBRBEES -

THASTHEZEANID RETER  TeE M#H -
HEBNMZELREEER  HGEAFETHRAX
EEIHIA40.8% * 15.9% ~ 7.0% F13.7% °

Ha g A R W

HAbUg A R Was £ BHEK D AF B WMA KBS K
A 2 BIE2011 4 42 %8 19 £960.1% K 18.2% (2010
G 78.4% N 15.2%) °

H A R I8 2010 FF 45 & 49 29.8% 8% 5,080,000
B EBXER2010F THFHMETE 2R
RIEESNE S 491,449,000/ 70 ° AN EEEHETH
7 7R K F 2 My ¥ 2 - EF 49 1,419,0008 L - B
Z SEENRMIBIEBEFBERFEGFEDEL
1,425,000 7T - {EETRE R SUE R E A8 »

14

Selling and Marketing Costs

Selling and marketing costs were approximately HK$35,242,000. Of
which, approximately 57.4% or HK$20,236,000 came from
transportation costs of metallurgical flux business, the newly
acquired business in December 2010, and approximately 13.1% or
HK$4,605,000 came from transportation costs of ecological fertiliser
business.

The remaining HK$10,401,000 of selling and marketing costs were
attributable to ecological fertiliser business, metallurgical business
and magnesium alloy business at approximately 87.0%, 7.6% and
5.4% respectively.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses was approximately HK$68,413,000,
representing an increase of around 26.9% as compared with that of
last year. The increase in the expenses was mainly resulted from the
new metallurgical flux business and financial service business.

Administrative expenses mainly comprised of staff costs,
depreciation and amortisation expenses, occupancy costs and audit
and professional fees, which accounted for approximately 40.8%,
15.9%, 7.0% and 3.7% respectively of the total administrative
expenses for the year.

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains mainly comprised of interest income and
rental income, which accounted for approximately 60.1% and
18.2% respectively of the total amount in 2011 (2010: 78.4% and
15.2%).

The amount surged by approximately 29.8% or HK$5,080,000 as
compared to 2010. This was mainly due to additional rental of
approximately HK$1,449,000 from new lease concluded in the
second half of 2010. Besides, the Group has sold its properties in
Australia and recorded a gain of approximately HK$1,419,000. In
addition, our metallurgical flux business being granted a government
subsidy of approximately HK$ 1,425,000 from the PRC government
for technical improvement for energy saving and financing.
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Margin

Net profit for the year leaped by approximately 58.4% to
HK$101,118,000 and profit attributable to owners of the Company
also surged by approximately 32.9% to HK$96,541,000.

Excluding the exceptional gain of reversal of provision for over-
extraction penalty of approximately HK$56,753,000 in 2011 (2010:
bargain purchase gain of HK$50,737,000), the Group achieved a
remarkable increase in adjusted profit for the year of approximately
239% or HK$31,279,000.

The increase was mainly attributable to the contribution from
magnesium alloy business, which commenced operation in July
2011, and fewer merger and acquisition expense incurred in 2011.

Liquidity, Liabilities and Financial Resources
The Group’s liquidity in 2011 was mainly derived from cash
generated from business operations. As at 31 December 2011, total
amount of cash and bank balances of the Group was approximately
HK$570,911,000 (2010: HK$647,685,000).

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s total borrowings increased
by 64.6% as compared to 2010, while net current assets increased
by 11.2% as compared to 2010. The Group’s gearing ratio
(calculated by total borrowings over total equity) was approximately
19.2% in 2011 (2010: 12.9%).

The Group’s existing cash resources together with the steady cash
flows generated from business activities are sufficient to meet its
business needs.

Exchange Rate Risk Management

The Group’s exposure to exchange rate risk is primarily derived from
foreign currency-denominated assets. The Group mainly operates in
Hong Kong and the PRC. However, exchange rate risk exposure
arising from currency swaps involved in business operations (mainly
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) and Renminbi (‘RMB”) is relatively low.

Most of the transactions of the business operations in Hong Kong

are denominated in HK$, and the related exchange rate risk is
considered to be insignificant.
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Exchange Rate Risk Management (Continued)
The majority of transactions of the business operations in the PRC
are denominated in RMB. Due to inadequacies and regulatory
restrictions of the PRC financial market, there is a rise in the Group’s
exposure to RMB along with the increase in its investment in the
PRC. In view of the appreciation of RMB against HK$ during the
year under review, no financial instruments were used for hedging
purposes. RMB appreciation is expected to be favourable to the
Group. The Group will seek for other alternatives to effectively
mitigate its exposure to exchange rate risk.

Credit Risk Management

The Group has always been aware of the credit risk exposure of our
customers. The Group strictly followed the “client account
management procedures” established in 2004. The procedures
required and ensured all client accounts were maintained and kept
track of periodically according to the previous transaction records
and credit history of each customer. The Group specified and
assigned to each customer a series of credit measures such as
credit ratio, credit period, credit rating, credit terms and guarantee.
The client account management procedures were effective to
control the credit risk of the Group.

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2011, the Group had pledge of its assets, the
details of which are disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2011, other than those disclosed in Note 39(a)
to the financial statements, the Group did not have any material
capital commitments.

Significant Investments

A wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Century Sunshine
Ecological Technology Limited as transferor, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement on 24 January 2011 with an independent third
party to dispose of 100% equity interest in American Excellent
Pesticide Limited and its subsidiary at a cash consideration of
RMBS8,000,000 (equivalent to HK$9,480,000). Details of which are
set out in Note 38 to the financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2011, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.
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Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2011, the issued share capital of the Company
were HK$51,578,067, divided into 2,578,903,333 Shares of
HK$0.02 each.

Human Resources

The number of employees of the Group was approximately 951
(2010: 990) as at 31 December 2011. The remuneration of
employees was determined by the Group with reference to their
performance, work experience and current market conditions.
Employee benefits include medical insurance, defined provident
fund scheme, discretionary bonus and employee share option
scheme. There has been no labour dispute or significant change in
the number of employees that affect the normal operations of the
Group. The Directors believe that the Group maintains admirable
relations with its employees.

Project Overview

Dolomite mine

This dolomite mine is situated in Baishan, Jilin Province, the PRC.
Mining license has been granted to the Group by the Jilin Province
Department of Land and Resources on 2 November 2010.

During the year, the Group commenced production and sale of
magnesium ingots after successful completion of loading test of
equipment and trial production in July 2011.

Up to 31 December 2011, the Group completed a dolomite output
of 49,646 tonnes (2010: Nil tonne). As compared with the state as
at 31 December 2010, there was no material change in the resource
estimate and ore reserve of the dolomite mine.

The expenditure incurred in development and mining of dolomite for
the year ended 31 December 2011 were approximately
HK$25,271,000, whereas only HK$902,000 for exploration in 2010.

Serpentine mine

This serpentine mine is situated in Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The
Group obtained the mining license through the acquisition of Gold
Strategy Investments Limited and its subsidiaries completed on 31
December 2010.
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Project Overview (Continued)

Serpentine mine (Continued)

Up to 31 December 2011, the Group completed a serpentine
output of 517,683 tonnes (2010: Nil tonne). As compared with the
state as at 31 December 2010, there was no material change in the
resource estimate and ore reserve of the serpentine mine.

The expenditure incurred in mining of serpentine for the year ended
31 December 2011 was approximately HK$9,840,000 (2010:
HKSNil).
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Executive Directors

CHI Wen Fu, aged 49, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Group who is responsible for overall strategic planning and key
operating decisions. Mr. Chi joined Fuzhou Justice Bureau
Commerce Law Office after qualifying as a lawyer in the PRC in
1989, Mr. Chi later opened his law firm in Fuzhou in 1995, in which
he was the Managing Partner. In early 1998, Mr. Chi started an initial
research on organic agricultural production and funded a R&D
project on microbial compound fertilisers. Mr. Chi graduated from
Fujian Light Industry Technical College in 1981, majoring in Chemical
Analysis. Mr. Chi established the Group in 2000.

SHUM Sai Chit, aged 54, Chief Operation Officer of the Group
who is responsible for business operations of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Shum was the Managing Director of Go
Modern Limited which was principally engaged in manufacturing of
textile products and trading activities. In 1984, Mr. Shum joined
Fujian Textiles Import and Export Corporation as a Manager to
oversee importing and exporting of textile products. Mr. Shum
graduated from Longxi Finance Training College, majoring in
Consumer Product Pricing and Statistics. Mr. Shum joined the
Group in January 2002.

CHI Bi Fen, aged 53, Vice-President of the Group. Prior to joining
the Group, Ms. Chi was the Deputy General Manager of an electrical
equipment company over 17 years. She has an extensive
experience in accounting, taxation and finance in the PRC for more
than 15 years. She graduated from Fuzhou Jian Lian Professional
College, majoring in Accounting and Finance and holds an
intermediate qualification in accounting. Ms. Chi joined the Group in
March 2000.

Non-Executive Director

GUO Mengyong, aged 53, has been the Deputy General Manager
of Fujian Wireless Group Company since 2000. He is responsible for
quality management. Fujian Wireless Group is principally engaged in
the production of electronic parts and components for meters and
electronic equipments. Prior to that, he worked at Fuzhou Meters
Group Company as an Engineer in 1993 and later promoted to the
Deputy Factory Manager in 1996, in charging of technical quality
control. In 1976, he joined Fuzhou Capacitors Factory as a
Technician. Mr. Guo graduated from Wuhan University in 1993,
majoring in Industrial Enterprise Management.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

KWONG Ping Man, aged 47, Director of O’Park Corporate
Services Limited which provides corporate advisory services. Prior
to joining the Group, he served as the Chief Financial Officer of
various companies for almost 7 years. Mr. Kwong has over 15 years
of experience in accounting, finance and administration. He obtained
a Master’s Degree in Professional Accounting from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He is a member of CPA Australia, associate
members of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. Mr. Kwong is
currently Independent Non-Executive Directors of Mitsumaru East
Kit (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 2358) and Tang Palace (China)
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1181).

LIU Hoi Keung, aged 47, Executive Director of Genvon Group
Limited (Stock Code: 2389). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu had
been the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of a listed
company on main board in Hong Kong. Mr. Liu has over 20 years of
experience in accounting, auditing, finance, and management. He
received a Master of Science Degree in Electronic Commerce and
Internet Computing from The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Liu is an
associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

SHENG Hong, aged 49, Director of Hadrian Manufacturing (Asia)
Limited and Director of Operations and General Manager of Hadrian
(Shanghai) Trading Limited. The Hadrian Group is principally
engaged in production and sales of metal partitions and lockers. Mr.
Sheng has over 20 years of experience in management of
corporation and investment. He was employed by China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited from 1986 to 1996. Mr. Sheng holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering Mechanics from Tongji University,
Shanghai.

Company Secretary

LUK Sai Wai, Simon, aged 48, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Luk is responsible for
financial, management accounting and secretarial affairs of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Luk was appointed as financial
controller for several listed companies in Hong Kong. He has over
20 years of experience in finance and management. Mr. Luk holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration from Hong Kong
Baptist University and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from University of Strathclyde. He is a fellow member of Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a member of
Society of Registered Financial Planners, Hong Kong. Mr. Luk joined
the Group in May 2010.
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Panel of Senior Consultants

Panel of Senior Consultants (the “Panel”) of the Group has strong
technical background and expertise in magnesium alloy smelting
and new materials development. The appointment of the Panel is to
provide the Group with solid technical and resources measure for
the development of magnesium alloy business. Members’
remunerations of the Panel are based on the nature and scope of
consultancy services provided. There is no fixed remuneration
arrangement between the Group and the Panel.

ZHANG Hongjie, aged 58, Scientific Technology Consultant of
the Group. He is a Researcher of Changchun Institute of Applied
Chemistry of Chinese Academy of Sciences and a tutor of PhD
students. He was honoured the Outstanding Young Scholar Award
of National Outstanding Youth Fund and Hong Kong Qiu Shi Fund.
He was also awarded as the Expert with Outstanding Contributions
in Jilin Province. Mr. Zhang has been engaging in research and
development for rare earth alloys and new materials. He is the
Deputy Chief Scientist of National Rare Earth Fundamental
Research. He is also Officers of State Key Laboratory for Rare Earth
Resource Utilisation, and Rare Earth Luminescent Professional
Committee of Rare Earth Society. He holds a Master’s Degree in
Science from Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry. He is
undertaking a PhD at National Scientific Research Centre, University
of Bordeaux.

MENG Jian, aged 55, Rare Earth Magnesium Alloy Consultant of
the Group. He has been appointed as the Professor and the Deputy
Officer of Rare Earth Resource Utilisation, Changchun Institute of
Applied Chemistry of Chinese Academy of Sciences. He is the
Deputy Officer of Solid and New Materials Professional Committee
of Chinese Society of Rare Earth. He is also Executives of Chinese
Society of Nonferrous Metals, and Institute of Metals in Jilin
Province. Mr. Meng has been engaging in research and
development of rare earth magnesium alloys and new materials. He
is an expert in China-US magnesium collaborations. He has
contributed substantially to development and application of rare
earth magnesium alloys. Mr. Meng majored in semi-conducting from
Jilin University, and holds a Master’s Degree from Changchun
Institute of Chemistry. He holds a PhD from Toyohashi University of
Technology, Japan.
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Senior Management

DU Qingzhi, aged 49, is responsible for the magnesium alloy
business of the Group. Mr. Du majored in metal metallurgy with over
30 years of experience in metallurgy and magnesium industries.
Prior to joining the Group, he was the Supervisor of a magnesium
factory in Hau Shan, the Factory-in-Charge of Lin Jiang Magnesium
Holdings Limited, and the Production Manager of German Stolfig
Group — Automobile Parts and Components. Mr. Du joined the
Group in 2008.

ZHOU Jianhui, aged 39, is responsible for the ecological fertiliser
business of the Group. Mr. Zhou majored in agriculture with over 20
years of experience in mining and agricultural fertilisers industries.
Prior to joining the Group, he was the Technician at Donghai
serpentine mine in Jiangsu Province, the Deputy Manager of Jiangsu
Le He He Fertiliser Company Limited, and the Factory-in-Charge of
Fertiliser of Jiangsu Longteng Petrochemical Company Limited. Mr.
Zhou joined the Group in 2007.

WANG Yongxiang, aged 43, Senior Engineer of the Group. Mr.
Wang majored in planning and surveying of mining industry with
over 20 years of experience in planning and mining. Prior to joining
the Group, he was the Production Technician and Engineer at
Donghai serpentine mine in Jiangsu Province, and the Factory-in-
Charge of Sulfuric Acid of Jiangsu Longteng Petrochemical
Company Limited. Mr. Wang joined the Group in 2007.

YANG Yuchuan, aged 47, Chief Executive Officer of the Group’s
subsidiary, Sunshine Partners Financial Group Limited. Mr. Yang
has over 20 years of experience in corporate finance, investment,
and general management. Mr. Yang worked for Ng Fung Hong of
China Resources Group between 1986 and 1994, focusing on
commodity trading. Mr. Yang holds a Bachelor’s Degree from
Shanghai Jiaotong University, and an Executive Master’s Degree in
Business Administration from University of San Francisco. Mr. Yang
joined the group in August 2010.
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Senior Management (Continued)

HON Sze Wan, Noelle, aged 39, Vice-President — Investor
Relations of the Group who is responsible for financial
communications and investor relations strategy. Miss Hon has over
10 years of experience in marketing, corporate development and
communications, investor relations, media management, and online
development. Prior to joining the Group, she held various senior
management positions with listed companies in Hong Kong and the
United States. She holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Australian Graduate School of Management,
University of New South Whales. Miss Hon joined the Group in
December 2011.

ZHANG Ren Sheng, aged 42, Director of Corporation
Management of the Group who is responsible for corporate
management and planning. Mr. Zhang has over 10 years of
experience in corporate management and business planning. He
holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from School of
Business of Wuhan University. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in July
2008.
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The Company is committed to achieve and maintain high standards
of corporate governance and business integrity. The Board believes
that good corporate governance will not only improve management
accountability and investors confidence, but will lay a good
foundation for the long-term development of the Company.

Throughout the year of 2011, the Company has complied with the
code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “CCGP”) under Appendix 14 to Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”),
with the following deviations:

(@  Under the CCGP code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. Details of which
have been disclosed in the section headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer (The “CEQ”)".

(o)  Under the CCGP code provision E.1.2, the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. The
chairman of the Board was unable to attend the annual
general meeting held on 2 June 2011 as he was obliged to be
away for a business trip. Mr. Shum Sai Chit and Ms. Chi Bi
Fen, Directors of the Company, attended the said annual
general meeting to respond queries from shareholders.

The Board

The Group is governed by the Board which is responsible for
strategic leadership and overall supervision of the Group. The Board
exercises a number of authorities which include:

—  Formulating the Group’s overall strategies

— Monitoring and controlling operational and financial
performance

—  Formulating strategies for risk management

—  Reviewing effectiveness of internal control system

—  Approving financial results and public announcements

—  Approving annual operating budgets

—  Approving major acquisitions or disposals and capital projects

—  Authorising major investments and material borrowings

—  Setting dividend policy

—  Approving appointments of Directors

—  Setting the Group’s remuneration policies



AN\ e e
ERER|ME

2011 F53§
ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Corporate Governance Report

EE=g (&)

EERTHAR

AEBERIR AN ERFARREEFRITRAE
I —ZRERRET A X E AT R TR - A
EFERA ANEEEETETEREREELR
NH#E - TERYAREERBIDARMBRERT
EREEEZAC  KRE - RERABTALEEN
REME © IWRBNEBNEE - SARBEHRE
=AM BT RAFHORE - MREETISL ESER
AL - BLERME—REREME - ARECRRRE
SRERE - BREEEAEFEAE - 817K
BREREEFTEECHINFTERARGH - X
B/ATHBHRBESSRETHERITH =
B EBMERBNER  MERESERHEZELS
BOER - TR/ TRESREMBESHINER
ERTZREIMERAEBERFOHXAHERAR
BEREZ-

EEENKE

EEEHTRESEN  HP3EBAWTES 15
BIENTEERSEABIIFNITES - Bt - B
FPTESHELESFTBB=D 2 — RERS
BE EF2 s REREESNERARFRFELIBER
F19E20H -

EEERTHUTESAREASEREERRNTE
EERMCEIBRBETENES  MUTEFEA
BEROEFSRHEEEHBREN  UHEFEE
REBEZRR -

The Board (Continued)

Chairman and CEO

Chi Wen Fu, founder of the Group, currently holds a dual role as the
Chairman and the CEO. This structure is not complied with the code
provision of the CCGP. However, the Board is of the view that it is
for the best interests of the Group to adopt a single leadership
structure, as Mr. Chi possesses extensive experience and
knowledge in the PRC market and he is playing a significant role in
establishing strategic decisions and overall management of the
Group. This strong and consistent leadership enables the Company
to make and implement decisions promptly and efficiently, yet no
suitable calibre is available at this stage. With the single leadership
structure, sufficient safeguards are established to ensure the
management is accountable to the Board. The Chairman/CEO
ensures Board meetings are held regularly and when necessary.
The Chairman/CEO ensures that Board members are provided with
complete, adequate, accurate and timely information on a regular
basis to enable them to be fully cognisant of the affairs of the Group.
The Chairman/CEO ensures all Directors have unrestricted access
to document or information kept by the Group and professional
advice when necessary.

Board Composition

The Board comprises 7 Directors in which 3 are executive Directors;
1 is non-executive Director and 3 are independent non-executive
Directors. The number of independent non-executive Directors
constitutes more than one-third of the Board. The composition of
the Board as at the date of this report and their profiles are set out
on page 4 and pages 19 to 20 of this annual report respectively.

The Board delegates powers to executive Directors for the day-to-
day management of the Group and implement major strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board whereas executive Directors should
provide such explanations and information to the Board in a timely
manner to enable the Board to monitor the performance of
management.
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The Board (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

Non-executive Directors from diverse backgrounds bring in valuable
expertise and experience to the Company and serve important
functions as well as provide strategic advices to the management.

Independent non-executive Directors ensure the Board accounts for
the interest of all shareholders and handle matters in an objective
manner. The 3 independent non-executive Directors have brought a
wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective delivery of
the Board functions. The Board has received from each independent
non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Mr. Chi Wen Fu and Ms. Chi Bi Fen have a family relationship of
brother and sister. Mr. Guo Mengyong is a brother-in-law of Mr. Chi
Wen Fu. Save as disclosed, there is no other relationship among
members of the Board.

Appointment and Re-election

New Directors, being individuals who are suitably qualified and
expected to make a positive contribution to the performance of the
Board, are identified by the existing Directors and submitted to the
Board for approval.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors shall
retire from office by rotation and every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every 3 years. Mr. Chi Wen Fu, Mr. Shum
Sai Chit and Mr. Liu Hoi Keung are subject to retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, but being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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The Board (Continued)

Appointment and Re-election (Continued)

All existing non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a fixed term of 2 years providing that at
least 3 months’ prior written notice is given by either party or the
Company to terminate the same. With effective from 1 January
2011, annual emoluments to independent non-executive Directors
and non-executive Director were revised as according to their
estimated time to be spent on the Company’s matter and working
experience with the Company as follows:

BIUFHTES Independent Non-Executive Directors

BB IR ST Kwong Ping Man

B 58 Liu Hoi Keung

RO Sheng Hong

FHITES Non-Executive Director
Eli ] Guo Mengyong

(Appointed on 14 September 2004)

(FA2004 59 A 14 BERT) 70,000
(Appointed on 23 January 2009)

(FA20094 1 A 23 HEZE) 50,000
(Appointed on 24 September 2010)

(FA20105 9 A 24 HEZRE) 30,000

(Appointed on 1 February 2011)
(R2011 62 A1 BEZEE) 30,000
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All non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors
are entitled to be reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred
during the performance of their duties to the Company and are
eligible for share options under the share option scheme of the
Company.

Board Processes

The Board is accountable to the shareholders and leads the Group
in an ethical, responsible and effective manner. The Board meets on
a regular basis and arranges ad-hoc meetings for any specific
matters that may arise.
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The Board (Continued)

Board Processes (Continued)

The Board met 4 times in 2011. The attendance of individual
Directors at meetings of the Board, its committees and members
general meeting is set out in the following table:

BITES Executive Directors
X ChiWen Fu 4/4 - - 0/
TLttEE Shum Sai Chit 4/4 - 2/2 11
SthEL ChiBiFen 4/4 - - 1/1
FHITES Non-Executive Director
Bl Guo Mengyong  (Appointed on 1 February 2011)

(R2011F2 A1 REZRAE) 4/4 - - 0/1
B E#{TEE Independent Non-Executive Directors
BEBIASL Kwong Ping Man 4/4 4/4 212 11
B Liu Hoi Keung 4/4 4/4 22 0/
Bk Sheng Hong 4/4 4/4 2/2 0/1
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Agendas and the accompanying board papers are circulated in full
to all Directors with sufficient time before the Board or committee
meeting. Board decisions are made by vote at Board meetings and
supplemented by the written resolutions. Minutes of the Board
meetings taken by the company secretary of the Company and,
together with any supporting papers, are available for inspection to
all Directors. The minutes record the matters discussed by the
Board, the decisions made and any concerns or dissenting views
raised by the Directors.

If a Director has a conflict of interests in relation to a transaction or
proposal to be considered by the Board, such Director is required to
declare his/her interest and abstain from voting. Such matter shall
be considered at a board meeting by Directors who have no
material interest in the transaction or proposal.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing business strategies and management of the daily
operations of the Group to the senior management. The Board is
empowered to access any Company’s information from senior
management and the company secretary at all times. The Directors
are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes that may affect
the Group’s businesses, including amendments on relevant rules
and regulations. Directors are allowed to seek independent
professional advice in performing their Directors’ duties at the
Company’s expense, but no request was made by any Director for
such independent professional advice in 2011.

The Board monitors and reviews performance of the management
based on their several key performance indicators such as financial
figures, investor relations, corporate governance and internal control.
The principal measures include review of management accounts,
review of internal or external auditor reports and feedbacks from
stakeholders.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct of the Company
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. The Company made
specific enquiries to all Directors and all Directors have confirmed in
writing that they have complied with the required standards set out
in the code of conduct during the year.

Board’s Commiittees

To assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has
established audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), and nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”). These committees
function within clearly defined terms of reference. Independent non-
executive Directors play a significant role in these committees to
ensure that independent and objective views are taken.
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Audit Committee

All the members of the Audit Committee are independent non-
executive Directors. All committee members possess appropriate
qualifications such as accounting and financial management. The
Audit Committee members are set out in page 4 of the annual
report.

The Audit Committee met 4 times in 2011 to review with the senior
management and external auditors the Group’s significant internal
controls and financial matters as set out in the Audit Committee’s
terms of reference. The functions of the Audit Committee included
review of the following matters:

—  The Group’s financial statements with recommendation to the
Board for approval

— The Group’s compliance of the regulatory and statutory
requirements

—  The Group’s internal control and risk management

—  Significant accounting and audit issues

—  The Group’s connected transactions

—  Overseeing and managing the relationship with external
auditors

The Audit Committee has the power to conduct investigations into
any matter within the scope of responsibility of the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee is authorised to obtain independent
professional advice if it deems necessary in the discharge of its
responsibilities. The Audit Committee has obtained a written
confirmation from the Auditors on their independence and objectivity
as required under the Section 290 (revised) of the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants prior to the commencement of the audit of the
Company'’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2011.

The Audit Committee has been satisfied with the review of the audit
scope, process, effectiveness and independence of the Auditors.
The Audit Committee has reviewed and recommended to the Board
for approval of the 2011 financial statements.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises of 4 members,
the majority of whom are independent non-executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee members are set out in page 4 of the
annual report.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to formulate
transparent procedures for set up remuneration policies and
packages for Directors and the senior management of the Group.
Its duties include:

—  Reviewing and recommending the remuneration packages of
the Directors and the senior management of the Group

—  Reviewing the administration of the share option scheme of
the Company

—  Reviewing the appropriateness of compensation for Directors
and the senior management of the Group

No Director is involved in determining his/her own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee met 2 times in 2011 to review the existing
remuneration policies and to approve the grant of share options.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises of 3 members, the
majority of whom are independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee members are out in page 4 of the annual
report.

lts duties include:

—  Reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board

— Recommending any proposed change to complement the
Company’s corporate strategies

— Identifying capable and qualified individuals to become Board
members

— Assessing independence of independent non-executive
Directors

—  Recommending appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors

The Nomination Committee were established on 23 March 2012.

Meeting of the Nomination Committee had not yet been held in
2011.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

The Company had appointed HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng as the
auditors of the Group. The Board was also authorised in the annual
general meeting to determine the remuneration of the auditors.
During the year, the auditors perform the work of statutory audit for
the year of 2011 and also involve in non-audit assignment of issuing
a confirmation to IFC in respect of the Group’s compliance of certain
financial covenants under the IFC loan.

The following principles are considered when determining the
appointment of the auditors in non-audit services:

—  No management decision made by the auditors
— Independence of the auditors not to be impaired
—  Quality of service

—  Cost of service

The Audit Committee was satisfied that the non-audit services
provided by the auditors did not affect its independence. The
remuneration of the auditors for the year of 2011 and 2010 are as
follows:

FE Year
2011

FE Year
2010
PBIT
HK$

BT
HK$

Eike = ES 3 HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
EZRS Audit services 1,280,000 1,280,000
B ZIRTS Non-audit services 1,000 1,000
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The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual
general meeting. In March 2012, the practice of HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng was reorganised as HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be nominated for appointment
as the auditors of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and
Auditors

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparation of
the financial statements for each financial period, which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries and in compliance with the requirements of the Hong
Kong Company Ordinance and the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Listing Rules.

The auditors acknowledge their responsibilities in the auditors’
report as set out on page 44 and 45 of this annual report.
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Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish, maintain and
review the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls
with a view to ensuring that shareholders’ investments and the
Group assets are safeguarded. This responsibility is primarily fulfilled
on its behalf by the Audit Committee.

The foundation of a strong system of internal control is a solid
control environment. This is dependent on the following
components:

—  Business ethics and culture of the organisation
—  Quality and competence of its personnel

—  Direction provided by the Board, and

—  Effectiveness of the management

Risk Management

The Company improves its business and operational activities by
identifying the areas of significant business risks via a regular review
and taking appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks.
The Company reviews all significant control policies and procedures
and highlights all significant matters to the Board and Audit
Committee.

Communication with Shareholders and
Investor Relations

The Company recognises the importance of open communication
and fair disclosure. It is the Company’s policy to ensure that all
shareholders are equally informed of all major corporate
developments.

All shareholders have proper notice of any general meeting of the
Company at which the Directors and the committees’ members are
available to give explanation on any query raised by the
shareholders. Major information of the Company could be obtained
from the Company’s website or financial reports and circulars sent
to the shareholders. Any enquiries by the shareholders requiring the
Board’s attention can also be sent in writing to our company
secretary of the Company at the Company’s business address in
Hong Kong.

As part of a regular program of investor relations, senior executives
may hold briefings or road shows after the results announcement
and attend conferences with institutional investors and analysts to
engage in two-way communications on Company’s performance,
objectives and developments. Company visits can be arranged
upon specific request.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011, which are set out on pages 46 to 152.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis
of Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are shown
under Note 23 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segments is set out in Note 9 to the financial statements. The
Directors consider that the Group’s operations are principally carried
out in the PRC and Hong Kong. Accordingly, no geographical
segment results are presented.

Results and Appropriation

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 46 of the
annual report.

The Board recommends the payments of a final dividend for 2011
of HK0.35 cents per share (2010: HK$NIl). Subject to the approval
of the 2011 final dividend by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting to be held on 17 May 2012, it is expected that those
dividend will be paid on 28 June 2012 to the shareholders registered
on 29 May 2012. The share registrar will be closed from 23 May
2012 to 29 May 2012, both days inclusive.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last 5 financial years is set out on page 6 of the annual
report.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 18(a) to the financial statements.

Investment Properties
Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group are
set out in Note 19 to the financial statements.
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Share Capital
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 34 to the financial statements.

Reserves

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in Note 35 to the financial
statements.

Distributable Reserves
Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2011
amounted to HK$760,305,000 (2010: HK$770,109,000).

Donations
The Group did not have any charitable nor other donation during the
year (2010: HK$253,000).

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2011, neither the Company
nor its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors
Chi Wen Fu (Chairman)
Shum Sai Chit

Chi Bi Fen

Non-Executive Director
Guo Mengyong (Appointed on 1 February 2011)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Kwong Ping Man

Liu Hoi Keung

Sheng Hong
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Directors (Continued)

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Chi Wen Fu, Mr. Shum Sai Chit and Mr. Liu Hoi
Keung will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable within 1 year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or its parent company
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business
During the year, none of the Directors or the management
shareholders of the Company or their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that
competed or might compete with the business of the Group.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 19 to 23 of the annual report.
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Share Option Scheme

In order to attract and retain the best quality employees for the
development of the Company’s businesses and to provide
additional incentives or rewards to selected qualifying participants,
the Company adopted a share option scheme on 3 December 2008
(the “Scheme”). The qualifying participants mainly include employees
of the Group, Directors and contractors, suppliers or service
providers of the Group who have contribution to the Group. The
Scheme, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years.

The subscription price is not less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
the date of offer of the option; (i) the average closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date of offer of the
option; and (i) the nominal value of a Share of HK$0.02. The
maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme shall not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time to time. Upon
acceptance of the offer for the grant of option, an amount of
HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company.

The Company can issue options so that the total number of shares
that may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme does not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue on the date of approval of the Scheme. The Company may
refresh this 10% limit at any time, subject to shareholders’ approval
and the issue of a circular and in accordance with the Listing Rules
provided that the number of shares to be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes does not exceed 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time.
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BIETEIA 2011 F12 830 A FHNEE Share Options Granted on 30 December 2011

B HE under the Scheme
n20114F 20114
12H530H FRTE FRERN 128 381H TEE
Ei-de A7 2B #a B IT
Options Options
Granted on exercised lapsed Held at Exercise
30 December during during 31 December price
2011 the year the year 2011 HK$
A) EE 150,500,000 — — 150,500,000 0.5
Employees
(B) E=
Directors
e 20,000,000 — — 20,000,000 0.5
Chi Wen Fu
VLR 15,000,000 — — 15,000,000 0.5
Shum Sai Chit
NUEZD2S 15,000,000 — — 15,000,000 0.5
Chi Bi Fen
HE 5,000,000 — — 5,000,000 0.5
Guo Mengyong
1098 5,000,000 — — 5,000,000 0.5

Kwong Ping Man

58 5,000,000 = = 5,000,000 0.5
Liu Hoi Keung
Bt 5,000,000 = = 5,000,000 0.5
Sheng Hong

220,500,000 = — 220,500,000
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BEERFTETHRAERAQATREM[IEE Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interest in the
ZERG - HERORES ZER Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company and Any Associated Corporation
R0 EFE12A31 B ARAISEEH T ETHA  Asat 31 December 2011, the relevant interests and short positions
BRARFISHIAEREEZE(TERESNMIEE  of the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
B ([BH R SR ) EXVER) 2 8% - 8RR underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
HEHPACHENARTIREZ A M EEHIZEXY  associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
HEIB2MEFE 2 ERMAZHEAERSREAMT :  Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), as recorded in the
register to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of
the SFO were as follows:

(i) EERAQTZER (i) Directors’ Interests in the Company
BHEE Long Positions in Shares
BERRE (BRI
gEH HEBTREX
(FfEE2) ZESDE
BEERGOEE Percentage
Number of Shares held of existing
BEEHA PN 3 A E R Number of issued share
Personal Corporate options held capital of
Name of Director interests interests (note 2) the Company
M E 158,660,000 918,484,850 1,077,144,850 41.77%
Chi Wen Fu (Bfd=E1) 20,000,000 0.78%
(note 1)
pRLErS — — — —
Shum Sai Chit 15,000,000 0.58%
hE S 7,500,000 — 7,500,000 0.29%
Chi Bi Fen 15,000,000 0.58%
HEB _ _ _ 3
Guo Mengyong 5,000,000 0.19%
B3 — - — -
Kwong Ping Man 5,000,000 0.19%
B 58 1,000,000 — 1,000,000 0.04%
Liu Hoi Keung 5,000,000 0.19%
Bt — - — -
Sheng Hong 5,000,000 0.19%
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interest in

the Shares, Underlying Shares and

Debentures of the Company and Any

Associated Corporation (Continued)

() Directors’ Interests in the Company
(Continued)

Long Positions in Shares (Continued)
notes:

1. These Shares are held by Alpha Sino International Limited
(“Alpha Sino”) and are deemed corporate interests by virtue of
Mr. Chi’s holding of 83.74% of the issued share capital of
Alpha Sino which entitled him to exercise or control the
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general
meeting of Alpha Sino.

2. Details of options held are set out in the above section headed
“Share Options Scheme”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had interests and short positions in the Shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
as recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of Part XV of SFO.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2011, persons who had interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of equity
derivatives of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

EARAT
ERITRAE
ZBT

Percentage of

RREHE

existing issued

Number Number share capital of
of Shares of options the Company
1,077,144,850 41.77%
(PsE1)
(note 1)
20,000,000 0.78%
(MizE2)
(note 2)
918,484,850 35.62%
(B3E3)
(note 3)
225,833,333 8.76%
(PizE4)
(note 4)
225,833,333 8.76%
(BizE4)
(note 4)
225,833,333 8.76%

a1
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company (Continued)

notes:

1. Mr. Chi Wen Fu has interest in an aggregate of 1,077,144,850 Shares
of which (a) 158,660,000 Shares are beneficially owned by him and
registered in his name; and (b) 918,484,850 Shares are deemed
corporate interests by virtue of his holding of 83.74% of the issued
share capital of Alpha Sino which entitled him to exercise or control
the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general
meeting of Alpha Sino.

2. Details of options held are set out in the above section headed “Share
Options Scheme”.

3. Pursuant to a share mortgage dated 13 November 2006, Alpha Sino,
being the substantial shareholder of the Company, had mortgaged
244,578,000 Shares (representing approximately 12% of the then
issued share capital of the Company on 13 November 2006) to
International Finance Corporation (“IFC”) to secure repayment of the
IFC Loan under a loan agreement dated 13 November 2006 entered
into between the IFC as lender and (i) Green Land Bio-Products
Company Limited; (i) Century Sunshine (Nanping) Biology Engineering
Company Limited; (iii) Century Sunshine (Jiangxi) Ecological
Technology Limited; and (iv) Century Sunshine (Zhangzhou) Ecological
Technology Limited, all being the subsidiaries of the Company.

4, These Shares are held by Best Equity and are deemed corporate
interests by virtue of Ms. Zou’s or Mr. Yang'’s holding of 52.83% and
47.17% respectively of the issued share capital of Best Equity which
entitled her or him to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or
more of the voting power at general meeting of Best Equity.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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Major Suppliers and Customers
The percentage of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 10.3%
— 5 largest suppliers in aggregate 36.7%
Sales
— the largest customer 5.2%
— 5 largest customers in aggregate 21.1%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

Connected Transactions
There was no connected transaction during the year and in last
year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company,
and within the knowledge of the directors, the percentage of the
Company’s Shares which are in the hands of the public exceeds
25% of the Company’s total number of issued shares during the
year and up to 27 March 2012.

Auditors
The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2009 were audited
by SHINGWING (HK) CPA Limited.

The accounts for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2011
were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng whose term of office
will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. In March
2012, the practice of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng was reorganised
as HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. A resolution for the
appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors
of the Company for the subsequent year is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Shum Sai Chit
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2012
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BE 31/F., Gloucester Tower
iR The Landmark

EITH 115 11 Pedder Street
BEMES Central
ERTITRES11E Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Century
Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
46 to 152, which comprise the consolidated and Company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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Auditors’ Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

HZE2011F12 A31 HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
FExT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
WA Revenue 8 763,394 493,771
SHE A Cost of sales (604,555) (4083,956)
S Gross profit 158,839 89,815
E AU A R iz Other income and gains 10 22,148 17,068
SHE RIS HEEE A Selling and marketing costs (35,242) (12,882)
T Administrative expenses (68,413) (53,903)
RIEEBZIRENBEE Realised and unrealised loss
RARZHEE on investments held for trading (4,309) (559)
HEMB AR KRS Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 38 3,800 252
B EEE MRS Reversal of provision for
B over-extraction penalty 30 56,753 —
RERE W& Bargain purchase gain - 50,737
BT 75 Finance costs 11 (16,413) (9,289)
B BT S % AT g A1 Profit before income tax 117,163 81,239
Frisfif s Income tax expense 12 (16,045) (17,416)
F 5 A Profit for the year 13 101,118 63,823
THIA LS FEREF, Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:
(B18)
RAREEA Owners of the Company 96,541 72,669
R IR A Non-controlling interests 4,577 (8,846)
101,118 63,823
PR EAAR B Proposed final dividend 15 9,026 —
FRRAF) : Earnings per share:
— B — basic 16 3.741licents 3.17{licents
— i — diluted 16 3.741licents 3.17{licents

WIS mE M B A LR & I SRR A — 30D o The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HE2011F12 A1 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010

THET THETT
HK$’000 HK$'000

F X Profit for the year 101,118 63,823

Hin2EWA (N AEF) :  Other comprehensive income (net of income tax):
G INE TS BT A 2 [ 35, Exchange differences arising from translation of

=% foreign operations 46,465 28,068
FREMEEYA Other comprehensive income for the year

(FNBRFTISH4) (net of income tax) 46,465 28,068
FAZEBAERE Total comprehensive income for the year 147,583 91,891
THALEEZEEA Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to:

(B8 858

ADEIER A Owners of the Company 141,884 99,603

FEFE AR Non-controlling interests 5,699 7,712)

147,583 91,891
AR M B AR B ISR &R — 21D - The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2011412 A31 8
As at 31 December 2011

2011

TR
HK$’000

2010
TAET
HK$'000

ERBEE Non-current assets
T A Land use rights 17 146,778 146,218
ME - BE K& Property, plant and equipment 18(a) 305,837 251,406
KEYE Investment properties 19 116,939 117,739
S Intangible assets 20 23,074 23,325
R Mining rights 21 572,969 505,376
WE R EEE Exploration and evaluation assets 22 - 35,602
HEIEBEE Held-to-maturity investment 24 10,000 =
BRI IEE E Deferred tax assets 32 592 557

1,176,189 1,080,223

REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 25 74,867 41,484
T A Land use rights 17 3,330 3,082
B 5 REMEWFRIE - Trade and other receivables,

FERFIERES prepayments and deposits 26 214,690 268,743
HIEEERE Investments held for trading 27 30,425 19,913
HRITIFR Deposits with banks 28 330,172 446,744
ReRkFERRLIER Cash and cash equivalents 28 240,739 200,941

894,223 980,907
B REAaE Less: Current liabilities
B 5 & E b e FRIE Trade and other payables 29 159,527 354,495
FEFT1S TR Income tax payable 13,813 12,822
B RS R Provision for over-extraction penalty 30 - 55,719
BE Borrowings 31 141,590 36,708
314,930 459,744
REEERE Net current assets 579,293 521,163
EEHABERRBAERS Total assets less current
liabilities 1,755,482 1,601,386
B EREAERE Less: Non-current liabilities
B’E Borrowings 31 142,451 135,857
BELERIEEEF Deferred tax liabilities 32 131,006 129,359
RAAFERT SRIE Long-term payables 33 - 732
273,457 265,948
EEZFE Net assets 1,482,025 1,335,438
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M20114F 12 A31H
As at 31 December 2011

2011 2010
FEx FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000

AN BB ARG IRA Capital and reserves attributable

R#E to owners of the Company

RS Share capital 34 61,513 61,513
(e Reserves 35 1,333,335 1,192,890
1,394,848 1,254,403
FERER Non-controlling interests 87,177 81,035
A Total equity 1,482,025 1,335,438

EHSN201243 A28 B ERBETIZEHNE 46  The consolidated financial statements on pages 46 to 152 were
BB ZREMBHE YR TIESKERES ! approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28
March 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

X E Mt
Chi Wen Fu Shum Sai Chit
EF E
Director Director
WIS mER M B A LR S I iRk A — 301D - The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
R2011F 12 A31 HILFE
As at 31 December 2011

2011 2010
FET THTT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
ME - BE K&EE Property, plant and equipment 18(b) 270 461
REB AR ZKE Investments in subsidiaries 23(a) 2,109 2,109
2,379 2,570
REBEE Current assets
B 5 I H fth fE W 5RIE Trade and other receivables,

R FERES prepayments and deposits 26 565 299
FHEEERE Investments held for trading 27 3,540 4,782
& W BT B A B) FRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 23(b) 713,273 735,392
FEU AR 5 Dividend receivable 90,547 90,547
RekFEREEHER Cash and cash equivalents 28 12,680 1,089

820,605 832,109
W RBEE Less: Current liabilities
B 5 N H b e~ 708 Trade and other payables 29 1,166 3,057
RBEEEE Net current assets 819,439 829,052
EEHAERARBEES Total assets less current
liabilities 821,818 831,622
EEFE Net assets 821,818 831,622
ARATEE ABERA Capital and reserves attributable
kE#E to owners of the Company
i@ Share capital 34 61,513 61,513
B Reserves 35 760,305 770,109
A Total equity 821,818 831,622

EEeMN201243 B 28 Atk RIFHETIZHNE46  The financial statements on pages 46 to 152 were approved and
2152 B2 HEK - WA TIESREESE - authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2012
and are signed on its behalf by:

M E it
Chi Wen Fu Shum Sai Chit
EF 2
Director Director
B sk M st B AN A5 TR R M — 2615 - The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial
statements.
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RARHEEAE(L
Attributable to owners of the Company
-]
e EAGE EEE HERE
(e (RaEa)  (RRG) e HfbifE
Capital
redemption Capital  Statutory
Share reserve reserve reserve  Translation Other  Retained controlling
premium (note (i)  (note (ii)) (note (iii)) reserve reserve  earnings  Sub-total interests
ThT TR TR BT BT TR THL AT
HK§'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
R2010E1 B1E  Asat1January 2010 45,061 564,961 2441 12,79 35,050 106,356 (185) 296,192 1,062,672 64902 1,127,574
ENEF|/(BE)  Profit{Loss) for the year - - - - - - - 72,669 72,669 (8,846) 63,823
EREMPERA  Other comprehensive
(MBHEH) . income for the year
BEBIEE (net of income tax):
-2 Exchange differences
EiES arising from translation
of foreign operations = = = = = 26,934 = = 26,934 1,134 28,068
ERZEYA/  Total comprehensive income/

(B5i8) 28 (loss) for the year - - - - - 26,934 - 72,669 99,603 1,12 91,891
KEHEAR Acquisttion of subsidliaries 6,517 83,958 - - - - - - 90,475 24,419 114,804
HE—FMBAR  Disposal of asubsidiary - - - - - - - - - (1,384) (1,384)
M EEEE  Eflectonchangein

152 functional currencies 9935 92,006 228 870 - (106,69) 80 15,368 11,791 810 12,601
®2EMR RS  Dividend recognised as

distribution - - - - - - - (10,138) (10,138) - (10,138)
R2010F Asat 31 December 2010

12318k and 1 January 2011 61518 740,925 2,669 13,666 35,050 26,594 (105) 374091 1,264,403 81,035 1,335,438

0111818
FRiEd Profit for the year - - - - - - - 96,541 96,541 4577 101,118
EREM2FRA  Other comprehensive

(M%) :  income for the year

BEBNER (net of income tax):

fEEZ Exchange differences
ERZE arising from
translation of
foreign operations - - - - - 45,343 - - 45,343 1,122 46,465
ER2AUALE Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - - 45,343 - 96,541 141,884 5699 147,583
HENEARE  Release upon
#% (Hfsts8)  disposal of
subsidiaries
(Note 38) - - - - - (1,439) - - (1,439) - (1,439)
HYEAREE  Capital injection in
a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 443 443
H20115 As at 31 December
124318 2011 61,513 740,925 2,669 13,666 35,050 70,498 (105) 470,632 1,394,848 87,177 1,482,025
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

X

)

(i)

B AN O R R AR A R B ] K S AR 7 B R AR X R
REBAEREZ AABRMDZEE

AXFEFHEREEEEEAENBRENMEZHBRR
IRINEE - BAERBREBRNMETIARRRG
EVE(E - &R Z5 ©

RETEARIMB((HE) KL ZHBARZMA
BER LR PEIERIRER - ZEW B RIAR
i 10% < IR FTS B & 8 7 (IR B B 0% 8 B 75
RHRE)EREERBE  RIERLEEREHEE
BB A AR & AN 50% © 7% A T8 & {2 7] A 81 Y
BARBEFE 2 EIR  mAMBAR I EEXEH
IR R ZBRAS o

PSRRI B ANAR S IR — 8P -

52

notes:

(i

(i)

Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of the Shares
of the Company which was transferred from the Company’s retained
earnings upon repurchase and cancellation of Shares by the
Company.

Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value
of the shares of the subsidiaries that have been acquired and
capitalised pursuant to a group reorganisation over the nominal value
of the Company’s Shares issued in exchange therefore.

In accordance with the articles of association of the subsidiaries
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the
relevant PRC rules and regulations, these subsidiaries are required to
set aside 10% of their profit after income tax as recorded in the PRC
statutory financial statements as statutory reserve, except where the
reserve fund balance has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered
capital. The reserve fund can only be used to make good the
subsidiaries’ previous years’ losses, to expand the subsidiaries’
production operations or to increase the capital of the subsidiaries.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
FEx FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
KESEE Operating activities
[ BT 15554 Al aa ) Profit before income tax 117,163 81,239
FLTFIIEE EL A% - Adjustments for:
& Nk gy Depreciation and amortisation 50,992 41,077
&R Finance costs 16,413 9,289
HEWE - BE REE (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and
B (W), EiE equipment (1,398) 5
REREAS Allowance for doubtful debts 2,105 —
B0 8 E BB S B s Reversal of provision for over-extraction
penalty (56,753) —
BIEFEEREMNEZBER Realised and unrealised loss on
REIFEE investments held for trading 4,309 559
BT A R A U a Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (3,800) (252)
FRIEHE B s Bargain purchase gain - (50,737)
iR EHA Dividend income (643) (604)
MEMA Interest income (13,307) (13,389)
E X B8 558 Net exchange loss 240 825
EEESEHRIMNLE Operating cash flows before movements
RERE in working capital 115,321 68,012
FEOEM, (Increase)/decrease in inventories (33,801) 3,394
B 5 K H A fEWRIE - Decrease/(increase) in trade and other
A FERESRLD receivables, prepayments and
(32hn) deposits 57,265 (149,258)
B 5 R E MR FRIA (Decrease)/increase in trade and
CRA) /HEn other payables (66,941) 111,679
BERIEEERE Purchase of investments held for trading (93,831) (19,683)
HERIEREBIRENAE Proceeds from disposal of investments
HIE held for trading 79,275 23,036
REXBFEENRS Cash generated from operations 57,288 37,180
EATFTSHL Income tax paid (18,234) (13,688)
RETERELN Net cash generated from
HEFE operating activities 39,054 23,492
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

RETH Investing activities
BEFEIHIRE Purchase of held-to-maturity investment (10,000) (236,776)
RITEFEIRA Decrease in deposits with banks 116,572 23,085
BEME - BERFZE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (83,445) (47,580)
NEMENLTGHEE Addition of exploration and evaluation assets - (902)
NEREME Addition of investment properties - (4,742)
B PR Addition of mining rights (23,243) _
FEDERE B B 21 Proceeds from realisation of held-to-maturity
Fiia=ia investment upon maturity = 236,776
FALERBARNERE Net cash inflow in respect of the disposal
mAERR of subsidiaries 234 1,626
B URLE Interest received 13,307 13,389
ERAKENBARMNRS Net cash inflow in respect of the acquisition
mAERR of subsidiaries - 43,522
ERAKENBARMNRE Net cash outflow in respect of the acquisition
7 R of subsidiaries - (147,173)
BRNEEEFKREZRE Repayment of consideration in relation to
acquisition in previous year (132,000) —
SALES Dividend received 643 604
HEYE  WENREN Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
FiaiE and equipment 6,581 128
BREEBFTAN Net cash used in investing
HEFE activities (111,351) (118,043)
mMEEE Financing activities
EERR TS I0E Proceeds from new borrowings 139,502 18,997
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (37,389) =
BERFE Interest paid (14,320) (7,510)
B E Dividend paid - (10,138)
RMEETBHAELENREESE  Net cash generated from financing
activities 87,793 1,349
REeRZ[RBLEHEM Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
ORA) 24 cash equivalents 15,496 (93,202
EYNEESREEERSEE Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 200,941 266,375
IIEERSFHHTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 24,302 27,768
FRNESREFHRSIEHR Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the year 240,739 200,941

BRI R M T B AR S I RS R A — 3B 1D The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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1.

— AR

tACFE L R AR AR (A RR]]) REHK
B A (i [ AN RE ) X BREERRZER
% HASEHK  RMGHEBEMNEBIRY
ES

ARARITIR2003F1 A21 BRBEFAEHE R
AEF 228 (1961 5123 - Kir s RiEET)
EHRESHSEMRIMEREER AT - XA
AWM R2004F2 A17THRERBER S
FrERAR(TER AT BIZER(AIZER ] £
M R 200847 31 AESEE R AIZERA
TG o B 200848 A1 B - AR AIHIAK

MERBRZAERLT - EFRA > ARFZ
RRERABIREEERBRAR  ZAFR

REBRIESEMKILZ AT e

ARBREREZERAR - EMBAREEXRE
FHIBENFE23 - AARIMEEE M KT
M EENAFRE 4 NFEL APIKE -

FAMBHRRG BT (BIT)) REL - BRIE
SEHA - BRIMESEGUE T T8
JTDEHE -
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General Information

Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in ecological fertiliser business,
magnesium alloy business, metallurgical flux business and
financial services business.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21
January 2003 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. On 17
February 2004, the Company’s shares were listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and were
withdrawn from the GEM Board on 31 July 2008. Since 1
August 2008, the Company’s shares have been listing on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. In the opinion of the
directors, the ultimate holding company of the Company is
Alpha Sino International Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. Particulars
of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note
23. The principal place of business and registered office of the
Company are disclosed on pages 4 and 5 of the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong

Kong dollars (‘HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (HK$’000) except when otherwise indicated.
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2.
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FER#ET RAIERT BRI B HRE LR
([EEMHHREER])

AEE  AEECDEHERERATHEESEE
RE([BEGFEAE]) WM 2] REER]
R AT kB ((HEEMBREEN]) -
B 2011 F1 A1 AR 2 AR BT BFE L
R MBBUBRELN BRI -

EBVISRELR  2010FEMHZ

(B5TA) (BB IEHRE
AR 2 Bt

EBVISHELR LBRESVERE

EREACCHEN) HHFE7HRE R
RAERNREN
BRER

g ER RAE T W R

25 2455 (72 2009 £

EABET)

BB EREGRTERAIE 2%

FERFUBRTAR) @I HE: 23|
— RS E 2 18E]

&% (BRI SEESERZ

HhEREZEY B FRIE

—Z2EE 1458

(B5TA)

&% (BRI ARS AR T ELHOR,

HhEREZET) SmaR

—R2EBE19%

R Z S MERT R RS AFE R
BEFECEHRFALBERFANERATE
HAEERRR SR L ZEHREBRE
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BE(ERVBREREZEG)REF 1457
ZETEARHARERHEREEREANTE -
RERZFETEARBDIRAZBER -
BE(ERVBREREZEG)REF 1957
VEAAREMEHEREREATE - REZ
ZEBH BN AEE R AR R S (A0 AR AE
BERER) BERER -

2. Application of New and Revised Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new standard, amendments and interpretations
(“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are effective for the
Group’s financial year beginning 1 January 2011. A summary
of the new HKFRSs are set out as below:

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2010

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time
Adopters

HKAS 24 (as revised Related Party Disclosures

in 2009)

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement

HK(FRIC)-Int 14
(Amendments)

HK(FRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments

The application of these new and revised standards and
interpretations has not had any material impact on the
amounts reported for the current and prior years but may
affect the accounting for future transactions or arrangements.
The impact of the application of the new and revised
standards and interpretations is discussed below.

The amendments to HK(IFRIC) 14 have had no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements as they were
consistent with policies already adopted by the Group.
HK(IFRIC) 19 has not yet had a material impact on the
Group’s financial statements as these changes will first be
effective as and when the Group enters a relevant transaction
(for example, a debt for equity swap).
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2. BAHTREEITERBHBREER
(TERMBREER ) (F&)

Hib 28 2 ZESHIIWT

—  BEEFTERIZE 2458 (X 2009 F4LHERT)
HEEALTZERERERT - Bt - &
SECEHFTHBEALTZERITTE
N 73 7% 7% AR AE BT TE 3= B AN SR B S A HA
FMBEHRBEAN T REY EEMNE

FE WO BEGEF 245 (R
2009 FF&MERT) IR BT AR E 88 2 3%
BAREELER - ARAEEIL IFBUT
HRERE - BULEATHASEY B E

—  BBEUBREEN(2010F) ZBELE
EUHBEMBRESEAE7TRERMT
B BREZEBEREFLZIRER - H
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(2011 )

BB eRERSE 275 By IR
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BB ERSE 2% EHEBMEER
CHEY SRBE®
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BERBHREER
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BE - BHEREAER
TRAE

BERBREEAEIR
ZEHIER B H R
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
The impacts of other developments are discussed below:

—  HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) revises the definition of a
related party. As a result, the Group has re-assessed
the identification of related parties and concluded that
the revised definition does not have any material impact
on the Group’s related party disclosures in the current
and previous period. HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) also
introduces modified disclosure requirements for
government-related entities. This does not impact the
Group because the Group is not a government-related
entity.

— Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus standard
introduce a number of amendments to the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures. The disclosures about the Group’s financial
instruments have been conformed to the amended
disclosure requirements. These amendments do not
have any material impact on the classification,
recognition and measurements of the amounts
recognised in the financial statements in the current and
previous periods.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

standards, amendments or interpretations that have been

issued but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Amendments)  Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income®

Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets?®

Employee Benefits*

HKAS 12

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements*

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures*

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities®
Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine*
Disclosure — Transfers of Financial
Assets!

Disclosure — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities*
Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS

9 and Transition Disclosure®

HK(FRIC)-Int 20

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

BBMBREERE R

BARBREENE 105
BARBREENE 15
BBMBRELERE 1257

BERBHREENE 135

TRAE
RAmMBEL
HEZH
BEREMER B

EINEE S

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements*
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements*
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities*
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement*
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2012.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

= Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in November 2009)
introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (as revised in November 2010) adds requirements
for financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change relates
to financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial
liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit or
loss, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless
the presentation of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of
the financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or
loss was presented in profit or loss.
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Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 that will be adopted in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning 1 January 2015 and that the application of
the new standard may have a significant impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Groups’ financial assets. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that
effect until a detailed review has been completed.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 titled Disclosures — Transfers
of Financial Assets increase the disclosure requirements for
transactions involving transfers of financial assets. These
amendments are intended to provide greater transparency
around risk exposures when a financial asset is transferred but
the transferor retains some level of continuing exposure in the
asset. The amendments also require disclosures where
transfers of financial assets are not evenly distributed
throughout the period.

The directors do not anticipate that these amendments to
HKFRS 7 will have a significant effect on the Group’s
disclosures regarding transfers of trade receivables previously
affected. However, if the Group enters into other types of
transfers of financial assets in the future, disclosures regarding
those transfers may be affected.

For other new and revised HKFRSs which are issued but not
yet effective, the Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact upon initial application. The Group
is not yet in a position to state whether they would have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which is a collective
term that includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”), and Interpretations
issued by the HKICPA and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for assets.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including special
purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All' intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of Total Comprehensive Income
to Non-Controlling Interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)
Changes in the Group’s Ownership
Interests in Existing Subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss
on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Where certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are accounted for as if the Company had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred directly to retained earnings). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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Business Combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

(i) deferred tax assets or liabilities, and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

(i) liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions of
the Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

(i) assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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Business Combinations (Continued)
Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or another measurement basis required by another
standard.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
considered as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill or
gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the measurement period about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.
Measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate,
with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss.
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Business Combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that
have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit or
loss when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of
that date.

Acquisition of Additional Interest in a
Subsidiary

When the Group increases its interest in an entity that is
already controlled by the Group, goodwill arising on such
acquisition represents the difference between the cost of
additional interest acquired and the increase in the Group’s
share of the net carrying amount of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired. The difference
between the cost of additional interest acquired and the book
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities attributable to the additional interest acquired is
recognised as a reserve movement (other reserve). The
difference represents the difference that arose since the
original acquisition date that is attributable to the Group’s
increased interest in the subsidiary. On the subsequent
disposal of the subsidiary, the reserve is transferred to retained
earnings.
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Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in
the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the relevant business at the date of acquisition.
Such goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis
of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and title has passed.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investment including financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment have been established.

Advisory service income is recognised whenever the services
are completed. When the service are partly completed, the
Group only recognises the revenue to the extent of amount
representing the proportion of services completed or equals
to the amount received, whichever is lower.

Brokerage income is recognised on a trade date basis.

Commission income, stock handling income, custodian fee
income, referral fee income, investment management fee
income, performance fee income and other advisory service
fee income are recognised when services are rendered.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Financial service fee income is recognised when services are
rendered.

Office management fee income from service agreements is
recognised pro-rata over the life of the agreement
corresponding to notional delivery of the service.

Any other income not mentioned above is recognised
whenever it is received or receivable.
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Government Grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including freehold land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other than
construction in progress), are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation is provided to
write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment
(other than construction in progress and freehold land) over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of
their estimated residual value, using the straight-line methods.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or for
its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried at
cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.
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Investment Properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. On initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over the lease term and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-
line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use or no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Land Use Rights

Payment for obtaining land use rights is considered as prepaid
operating lease payment. Land use rights are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, amortisation is charged to profit or loss
over the period of the rights or the term of the respective
enterprise to which the land use rights are granted, whichever
is the shorter, using the straight-line method.

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building
are considered separately for the purpose of lease
classification, unless the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, in which
case, the entire lease is generally treated as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment. To the
extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for as
operating leases and amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownerships to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as Lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as Lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets Acquired in a Business
Combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where they
satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair values
can be measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets
is recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Alternatively, assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Technical Know-how

Expenditure on acquired technical know-how is capitalised
and amortised using the straight-line method over its
estimated useful life of 5 years, from the date when the
technical know-how is available for use.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Intangible Assets (Continued)

Research and Development Expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have
been demonstrated:

— the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

— theintention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

— the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

—  the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset; and

— the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during the
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on
the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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Exploration and Evaluation Assets
Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost on
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, exploration
and evaluation assets are stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Exploration and evaluation assets include
the cost of exploration rights and the expenditures incurred in
the search for mineral resources as well as the determination
of the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting
those resources. When the technical feasibility and
commercial viability of extracting mineral resources become
demonstrable, previously recognised exploration and
evaluation assets are reclassified as either intangible assets or
property, plant and equipment. These assets are assessed for
impairment before reclassification.

The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation assets
is reviewed annually and adjusted for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets whenever
one of the following events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable (the
list is not exhaustive):

—  the period for which the Group has the right to explore
in the specific area has expired during the period or will
expire in the near future, and is not expected to be
renewed;

—  substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of mineral resources in the specific area in
neither budgeted nor planned;

—  exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in
the specific area have not led to the discovery of
commercially viable quantities of mineral resources and
the Group has decided to discontinue such activities in
the specific area; or

— sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a
development in the specific area is likely to proceed, the
carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation asset
is unlikely to be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.
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Exploration and Evaluation Assets
(Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss whenever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Mining Rights

Mining rights, including transferred exploration and evaluation
assets, are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any impairment losses. The mining rights are amortised on the
production quantities over the total estimated mineral reserve.
Mining rights are written off to the income statement if the
mining property is abandoned.

Foreign Currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value, are included in profit or
loss for the period.
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Foreign Currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) at the rates of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in capital and reserves (the translation reserve).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or
after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the translation reserve.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement Benefit Costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
are charged as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Share-based Payment Transactions
Share Options Granted to Employees

For grants of share options which are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services
received determined by reference to the fair value of share
options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (employee compensation reserve). The
impact of the revision of the original estimates during the
vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss with a
corresponding adjustment to employee compensation
reserve.

For share options which are vested at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in employee compensation reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in employee
compensation reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group'’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)
Financial Assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the four
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments
and available-for-sales financial assets. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through
Profit or Loss (“FVTPL”)

Financial assets at FVTPL represent investments held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; or

— it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has

a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

— itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)
Financial Assets at Fair Value through
Profit or Loss (“FVTPL”) (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, deposits
with banks, cash and cash equivalents, amounts due from
subsidiaries and dividend receivable) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Held-to-maturity Investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group’s management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial
recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale Financial Assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)
Available-for-sale Financial Assets
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in investment revaluation reserve until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see
accounting policies on impairment of financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see
accounting policy on any impairment of financial assets
below).

Impairment of Financial Assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or

prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)
Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)
For all of the Group’s financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

— default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivable, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)
Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)
For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investment revaluation reserve. For available-
for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial Liabilities and Equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified accordingly to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified
into other financial liabilities.

Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Other Financial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity Instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Convertible Bonds

Convertible bonds issued by a subsidiary of the Company that
contain both the liability and conversion option components
are classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option will be settled by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the subsidiary’s own equity instruments is classified
as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest rate of similar
non-convertible debts. The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the notes into
equity, is included in equity (convertible bonds equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component, represented
by the option to convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the subsidiary, will remain in convertible bonds
equity reserve until the conversion option is exercised (in
which case the balance stated in convertible bonds equity
reserve will be transferred to share premium). Where the
option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance
stated in convertible bonds equity reserve will be released to
the retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.



2011 FF3§

B IS SRR M AL

HZE20M1MF12A31ALFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

SRT A (&)

AR E % (&)

BRI AR E S 2 R BA TR TS 5/ IE
ZoRpB D EaBERERED - ARED
MAZRBRAGEKF AERA - 8 EH
DZRXHRAAFTARBER D 2 REE - WA
BRI ZER AR E R R # i

AU TER
EREEWNIRRERENENER  LSBE
ECEREASECDKEREREERFEN
BB AR N EHRER - RIGR IR SR
BE RUIEREREER BEREERD
WE KA E S INERNE 2 E R AR R
TEBNANMERZER - RBEER

EEMAKNMATRNE (EERER « i ER
o SRBESRRILER R LLERNE

BEENREEESNXENREEZEER
BEER -

BB ZERREREERERE

RBEEHR AKEHEEHEEENERT
B BUNEEZSEERGHERERSE - i
HIRZIEN - BEZ KBS RERKEME - A
EEREBRREE(WE) o WAKBEG KA
BEMNTHRESRENEREE  AIZBREE
MEREEZREE E AT @ £ 58 o RERE K
AR RER R

Financial Instruments (Continued)
Convertible Bonds (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible bonds using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specific in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment Losses on Tangible and
Intangible Assets other than Goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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Impairment Losses on Tangible and
Intangible Assets other than Goodwill
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Provision

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation, as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Where the effect of the time value
money is material, the amount of a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Related Parties Transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(1) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
0] has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group.
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Related Parties Transactions (Continued)
(2)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

U

(i

(i)

i)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (1).

A person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between

related parties.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the

financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most

senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.
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(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Segment Reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical Judgment in Applying the Entity’s
Accounting Policies

The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations that the directors have made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Exploration and Evaluation Assets

When there are events or changes in the circumstances
which indicate the carrying amount of the exploration
and evaluation assets may not recoverable, the Group
will take into consideration of the recoverable amounts
of the relevant cash generating unit. After taking into
account of the current economic environment, the
directors of the Company have confirmed that there is
no indicator for impairment on the exploration and
evaluation assets.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(a)

(b)

Estimated Impairment of Investment
Properties, Mining Rights, Property,
Plant and Equipment and Intangible
Assets

The Group evaluates whether investment properties,
mining rights, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets have suffered any impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of the assets may not be
recoverable, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 3. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units represent the higher of the asset’s fair
value less costs to sell or its value-in-use. The
calculations of fair value less costs to sell or value-in-use
require the use of estimates. During the year, the Group
did not provide any impairment for investment
properties, mining rights, property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets (2010: HK$NIl).

Estimated Useful Lives of Investment
Properties, Mining Rights, Property,
Plant and Equipment and Intangible
Assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation/amortisation
charges for its investment properties, mining rights,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of investment properties, mining
rights, property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to market conditions.
Management will increase the depreciation/amortisation
charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(Continued)
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

(b) Estimated Useful Lives of Investment
Properties, Mining Rights, Property,
Plant and Equipment and Intangible
Assets (Continued)

During the year, the Group had changed the estimated
useful lives of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and mining rights as stated in Note 5.

(c) Estimated Impairment of Inventories
The management of the Group reviews the inventories
listing on a product-by-product basis at the end of the
reporting period. The management estimates the net
realisable value for such items based primarily on the
latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
During the year, the Group did not provide any
allowance for inventories (2010: HK$NIl).

(d) Income Tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
may be uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

(e) Impairment of Trade and Other

Receivables

The impairment of trade and other receivables are
based on the ongoing evaluation of collectability and
aging analysis of the outstanding receivables and on
management’s judgment. From time to time, the Group
may experience delays in collection. Where
recoverability of trade and other receivables are called
into doubts, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, provision may be required. Certain
receivables may be initially identified as collectable, yet
subsequently become uncollectable and result in a
subsequent write-off of the related receivables to the
consolidated income statement. Changes in the
collectability of trade and other receivables for which
provisions are not made could affect our results of
operations.
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Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(Continued)
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

()

Estimated Impairment of Goodwill

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has
been impairment of goodwill in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 3. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units are determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require
the use of estimates and assumptions made by
management on the future operation of the business,
pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions
underlying the value-in-use calculations.

Changes of Accounting Estimates
(a) Change in Useful Lives of Property,

Plant and machinery

Plant and Equipment

Upon opinions of independent technical advisors on
accessing economic useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, effective from 1 July 2011, the Group
revised its estimate of the useful lives respectively as
follows:

2011 2010

HER 5-10%F

Over lease terms 5-10 years
5-25F 5%

5-25 years 5 years

EHZFE A - EZERBARREENE -
VASE 4F 3 R B 5% 5 B EE A AR 4B T (R (2 A
ZIhETHAR c ZEEB B BERNE
Z2011F12A3MBLEEEREEER
BETEHEXRBEZSFE RO
E £ 493,326,000 7 7T &I 1N 4F A5 £
#92,494,000 7T °

REZBEAFE MERIBRIH
8,087,000 7T + M 4F & & A # 3 hn 49
6,065,000 T - EEBEEZHINEL D
BRI -

These changes were made, after taking into account
the future economic benefits, to better reflect the
estimated periods during which such assets will remain
in service. Such changes had the effect of decreasing
the depreciation expense by approximately
HK$3,326,000 and increasing profit for the year by
approximately HK$2,494,000 for the year ended 31
December 2011.

For each of the subsequent years, the depreciation
expenses will decrease by approximately HK$8,087,000
and profit for the year will increase by approximately
HK$6,065,000 until the assets are fully depreciated or
disposed of.
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5.

90

(b)

(c)

RENE2ERFHED

BB BRI E Y E 2 LB ER
FEHZE R A2011FE7A1BH#E - K
SEETHEREYERNFRFR G
A

REME

5. Changes of Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

(b)

Investment properties

Change in Useful Lives of Investment
Properties

Upon opinions of independent technical advisors on
accessing economic lives of investment properties,
effective from 1 July 2011, the Group revised its
estimate of the useful lives of investment properties as
follows:

2011 2010

HERA 204
Over lease terms 20 years

EHRZEZ A - BEBARLER = -
AR AT R BR 52 5 B E A A B P (R
ZIEEHEIE - ZE2 B o EBERE
Z2011F12A3IBEFEREEZESR
BERETEIRBEZEFE BT
E R 492,033,000 7% T & 1 10 F A5 )
431,525,000 7T °

REZBEFEE  MERIBRIL
4,113,000/ 7T * i 4 JZ & ) 1% 35 h0 49
3,085,000/ 87C ' EEREMHEZEINE

RREBEL EZ 22

2011 F1 A1HE  REBEREHERE
2B A ARBGFHER TR
HEXAEE MARBELARREEREE
HERIE o

EHZEEE R - EEBARRLER -
BEBESNRREEN RO EEE
NEHRET  ZEEH T ERER
HE2011F12AMBEFEREERE
ZEETENENREZSFE B
FrER X #)2,097,00078 7T R Mk Fi 1&g
i A 491,279,000 8 7T ° AR ARRERETD
ATER - B FE 2 ER T B
HEET o

(c)

These changes were made, after taking into account
the future economic benefits, to better reflect the
estimated periods during which such assets will remain
in service. Such changes had the effect of decreasing
the depreciation expense by approximately
HK$2,033,000 and increasing profit for the year by
approximately HK$1,525,000 for the year ended 31
December 2011.

For each of the subsequent years, the depreciation
expenses will decrease by approximately HK$4,113,000
and profit for the year will increase by approximately
HK$3,085,000 until the investment properties are fully
depreciated or disposed of.

Change in Amortisation Method of
Mining Rights

Effective from 1 January 2011, the Group changes the
amortisation method of mining rights from straight-line
basis over estimated useful life to quantities of
production over total mineral reserve.

These changes were made, after taking into account
the future economic benefits, there has been a change
in the expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the assets. Such
changes had the effect of decreasing the amortisation
expense by approximately HK$2,097,000 and
increasing profit for the year by approximately
HK$1,279,000 for the year ended 31 December 2011.
Effect for subsequent years is not practicable to
estimate due to the unpredictability of future production
steams.
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6. &FTHA 6. Financial Instruments
(a) £RIEBEHE3 (a) Categories of Financial Instruments

b N
The Group The Company

2011 2010 2011 2010
TR TAT FTRET TAT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000  HK$000

SHMEE Financial assets
Bk EWKZIE (B Loans and receivables
RITEFTARIRS (including deposits with

;ERBREIEAEER) banks and cash and
cash equivalents) 753,874 906,454 816,500 827,028
FHEFERE Held-to-maturity investment 10,000 — - =
RASEEFAEZR  Financial assets at fair value
SREE through profit or loss 30,425 19,913 3,540 4,782
ol Nk Financial liabilities
hEH P AN Amortised cost 443,568 490,798 1,166 3,057
(b) BIEEREEEERBE (b) Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies
AEBRARFTNEZEHITAEBER The Group’s and the Company’s major financial
EEERE  BEIHPRE BEHRHE instruments include investments held for trading, held-
HEYFHIE R1TEX  BHEe LSRR to-maturity investment, trade and other receivables,
S£IEE B NREMEMNTBEURES o deposits with banks, cash and cash equivalents, trade
ST EFISNERIMTIHE - HE and other payables and borrowings. Details of the
SR T EAENER S FEINERK « A financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
Rk AmEERERRE - FERRRR The risks associated with these financial instruments
PESER o ATEI A EMNZ SR include foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, other
BRI BUR o AN B R AR A AL R price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
EIRFTEIZ BN A TER 8 & Bl 45 0 how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
SRGAREMBFEANER N AR T BT Group’s and the Company’s overall risk management
BREAMBEZNEETFRR - programme focus on the unpredictability of financial

markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s and the Company’s financial
performance.
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(b) VHEBREEBEFEREE(E)

(i) SMEREE

REBEARAEEETEARK
B (TR REBLEEY - 8
It 2 18 A 1 R & 6 1 2 A R0 S
ERR - TESMET ARER
BT (DRIT]) o INERBR IR R

REERS  DHEIABEMEE

AR SNBIE S H) IR B R - NEE
RARRBER EFRRAZEEBHIN
KREBIFEALTK - Bt - ANEH

Ko 7R R)IR B I SR ) SN LR -

AR B B AN R)TE AR AT LAB TT A
She BRBBEZRBEENMABIN

AHESNERR ©

BRED T

M2011FE12H31H B T H

AR #H 55, 50585% (20104 :

5%) - AT A H b & BURKF T
- AAEEFERMNE LT

T B& #74,801,0007% JT (20104F :

471,078,000/ ) ' FERMRHKE
MARETHEzR e RERRESE

BmEE 2z IMNEW BB -

MR2011F12 831 H @ B TH R

TCHIF9, 1158 5% (20104F : 5%)

MmATA Efh B EURIE T2 - BIARE
FEE M EF T B 4959,000

7 70 (20104 = #914,00078 7T )

TEHRBRELVRTFHEZRE R
ERELEEMELEZINE W

&5/ BIEATE -

(b)

Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies (Continued)

(i)

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group and the Company mainly operate in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and
Hong Kong and is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to HK$, RMB and Australian
dollars (“AUD”). Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. The Group’s and the Company’s
management do not expect the net foreign
currency risk from these activities to be significant
and hence, the Group and the Company do not
presently hedge the foreign exchange risks. The
Group and the Company periodically review liquid
assets and liabilities held in currencies other than
HK$ to evaluate its foreign exchange risk
exposure.

Sensitivity Analysis

As at 31 December 2011, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% (2010: 5%) against RMB
with all other variables held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year would have been approximately
HK$4,801,000 (2010: approximately
HK$1,078,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on transaction of
RMB-denominated cash and cash equivalents.

As at 31 December 2011, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% (2010: 5%) against AUD with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$59,000 (2010: approximately HK$14,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of AUD-
denominated cash and cash equivalents.
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TR T A (&)
(b) MHEAREEBEFEREE (&)

6.

(i)

(iii)

FF E 2
REBAME B BTS2 E HE
5 EEBBROERALEERMEER
ZARENEER (FIBEDHI2H
MizEod - 28 )% 31) o

ARBAEE RN KRR

BREDIN

fis & 72011 F 12 A31 H & 2010
F12A31 B2 RBTFEAREEF
KEBEEME EF TREA0EE
BEFIR01%)  NEBMNEE
SEAE R E BRI TR M E B R
EENRAE TR, £F ik
hn, 4> %9 46,000 % 7T (2010 4F -
SR 18 N274,0005870) ©

HRERER AN EEEERMN Lt
AAEMNEREBIIFER - FER
FAREEEAL EIREE K2 Mg &
b IEHE o

AREBENEAMEABREAMTISL
EHEZRITEBRZ A RAEE
@ o AT - ANIRITHEBEEIG A
AAEE - RitASEES BB
B -

H B m b
AREBRARBEBER EHRA
BHEMELEMREEDS 2 REARR
RABRER - EEEEBERT
FERIREHSIABTELRERE - K
SERARREMERRREESE
TREBFRRPE LT ZBATA
Rem#EREsESRE -
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Financial Instruments (Continued)
(b) Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate held-to-maturity
investment, fixed-rate deposits with banks and
fixed-rate long-term borrowings (see Notes 24, 28
and 31 respectively for details).

The Company has no significant interest rate risk.

Sensitivity Analysis

If interest rates on deposits with banks and
borrowings as at 31 December 2011 and 31
December 2010 had been 10 basis points (0.1%
per annum) higher/lower than the actual effective
interest rate, the Group’s profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$46,000 higher/lower
(2010: approximately HK$274,000 lower/higher)
as a result of a decrease/ increase in fair value of
fixed-rate deposits with banks and fixed-rate
borrowings.

As management considers the Group’s exposure
to the above fair value interest rate risk is not
significant, no interest-rate swaps or other
hedging activities are undertaken by management
during the year.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to bank balances carried at
prevailing market rate. However, such exposure is
minimal to the Group as the bank balances are all
short-term in nature.

Other Price Risk

The Group and the Company is exposed to equity
price risk through its investments in listed equity
securities and unlisted investments in funds. The
management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks. The Group’s and the Company’s
other price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments listed in Hong Kong and the PRC and
on fund investment quoted by the financial
institutions.
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6. RTHA(E)
(b) BXEREEEERBER(E)

(iii) EMER%E L (&)
HEBE DN

AT BRESIRERS B AR S

ZBAREREREE o

HEBERATEZB& L TE
10% (20104F : 10%) * AEE 7 F
T 5 FI 45 38 00,8k > #9 8,043,000

#7C(2010% © #91,991,000/47T) *
RERFFHER B A 2 &8

(iv) =E&k

ZARZHF I AREBITRRE D
ARBECHRASREENEEM
BHREEHBREMBEER  AEEA
AXMRREERRRNES B

RRNKRFRZ ZEEEMNREE -

AEEEERA REERERITH
FE=TTETRS - AEENREKE
AN EERERZNEFAZ
AR E

HBEERERF ° W
R USRS o

AEBTEBEN RS EERAR
BNV EEIHIRE - REBEB
HEEREIRRELTHREE
DT BAAERBRERE - &
BRENESESSHAER 7

1FE »

PAKERMEREE (BRERE
kERBREEB)MELZERR
amE  ARBERSFHHERER
MARSNEERRAR - thTH
REFHRERFEETR - A
SEBEHIEEZEERNARDE

B Re M RERBLK -
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6.

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies (Continued)
(iii) Other Price Risk (Continued)

(iv)

Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 10% (2010: 10%) higher/lower, the
Group’s profit for the year would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$3,043,000 (2010:
approximately HK$1,991,000) as a result of the
changes in investments held for trading.

Credit Risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform
their obligations at the end of the reporting period
in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group trades only with recognised,
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

The Group also purchases a held-to-maturity
investment that may contain an element of credit
risk. The Group minimises such risk exposure by
performing detailed credit analysis of the potential
held-to-maturity investment. The investment
decision is also subject to approval by the Board
of Directors.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other
financial assets of the Group which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from default of the
counterparties is limited as the counterparties
have good credit standing and the Group does
not expect to incur significant loss for unallocated
advances/deposits from these entities.
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(b) FHEMREERERBEGE)

(iv) EE=EE (&)
AEEYESEETNEERR

AEBEFIARERRERAARR
HERELBNEFPHEER - A%
BHIRITER R RN B E 2
FFHAFRRNEEREERRND

AR B B L B R 505

¥ MEBERR  AEEFHRR
TREMEBNETFRTESEEX

EERRE -

(v) REEZEE

AEEETRENRDESARE
2 ERZEREAREIEE
&7 BBRFERMHEEREN
HRHAHBAES  UREETS
SETEVBE S - AEBBAREF AT
PRAMBRHEERE  EUBIKE

SHENEEME -

6.

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies (Continued)
(iv) Credit Risk (Continued)

(v)

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. It has policies in place to ensure that
sales of goods are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. The Group’s deposits
in bank and deposits placed with a financial
institution are placed in high quality financial
institutions without significant exposure to credit
risk.

The directors consider that there is no significant
credit risk in respect of the Group’s deposits in
banks and deposits placed with a financial
institution as the financial institution has no record
of default payment.

Liquidity Risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities
and the ability to close out market positions. The
Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
keeping adequate facilities available.
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6. TRTAGA)

(b) MHRAREEBEFEREE (&)

(v)

mEEZEE (E)
TRETAEERAR R AFER
EESENSRBAE  hIRRA
R EHAR - REBBRSHRE
BRI A RIRREET O
RAFMBEEN SR AEOMERITER
METRE - ARTRNFEL T
BA - FttE12(E A AZI B4
BIAENEREE -

mEFH
BRI
Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
GilES

%

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies (Continued)

()

—E)T

Less than

Liquidity Risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities that will be settled
on a net basis into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the end of the
reporting period to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balance
due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

The Group
2011

St
-EmF MENL  REREAR R

Total
Between 1 Over 2 undiscounted Carrying

1year and2years years  cash flows amount

TR
HK$'000

Tn Tn Tn TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ZSREMENTIE  Trade and other payables - 159,527 - - 159,527 159,527
(&8 Borrowings 1.23 149,470 7,880 154,352 311,702 284,041
308,997 7,880 154,352 471,229 443,568

20104 2010

T
Lo

Weighted

average
effective
interest rate
g

%

—FUT

Less than
1 year
TAL
HK$'000

AR
Rehg

ML g HHE

Total
Between 1 Over2  undiscounted Camying
and 2 years years cash flows amount
TAL TAL TAL TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

2SR EMENTIE  Trade and other payables - 317,501 - - 317,501 317,501
B8 Borrowings 6.73 44,330 7,622 149,306 201,258 172,565
RBEMZE Long-term payables = - 850 _ 850 7

361,831 8472 149,306 519,609 490,798
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)
(b) Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies (Continued)

(v) #EELER(E) (v) Liquidity Risk (Continued)
P NN The Company
2011 2011
ATERESHRE
miEF MR AR
B A= —FREE EREE
Weighted average Total undiscounted
effective cash flows and Carrying
interest rate due within one year amount
THER TET
% HK$’000 HK$°000
B REMEMNTIE Trade and other payables - 1,166 1,166
2010 4F 2010
AMBRERE
INFEF3 g RIAR
ERA —FRNER REE
Weighted average Total undiscounted
effective cash flows and Carrying
interest rate due within one year amount
FET TET
% HK$'000 HK$'000
B S REMERNZIE  Trade and other payables — 3,057 3,057
(c) 2RE (c) Fair Value
THEEREMARZAREBERETS The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
EREFE - are determined as follows:

BAREGR LR LG RR B
mHEREEZEHEERERAGRY
RREDRNSETS B ER
BREREET: &

RFEERX ZEEEN &7
RREREOIN  BEEHRMERE
EREBAGEZANE  FRAEE
MEANMERR BMBERHEE
ZEBRIERER -

— the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices and
ask prices respectively; and

— the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices from
observable current market transactions and dealer
quotes for similar instruments.
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6.

98

TR T A (&)

(c) 2RfEE)
BRIESI TR BEZEES R ERE
EReBEBENFHEMAIE - WE
ERRRUBHRRABHERAZHE 2
BEERTBREBRANAERLY -

R BN I RAERZ A ETE

RENEREBIZ AR BEFECERBTA
BBEMESZANBEIEAF1HEESES
*F o

AR

— 1R B EERBBERELRE
MIZWE CRERE) B ARER

=
=-°

—  F28 BREIRFTROBESN
HREEXBEEE (BMER)KHEE
(B ERRE) BRMAEHNER
BRIfSZARERE -

—  F3E DABEEDFALIER
BABRTSEER(EIEREA
BB cEESRRBZMBETES
4o

MR2011F12 8318 HIEEEKREZ
N 7 1E 4 530,425,000 7T (2010 £ -
19,913,000 7T) - R B A E#AIEE
ERMBZAEAERE BILERAR

BHESFEEE VA -

MEFEE R EAESF 1 BN E 28 2
7L o

EsmEBRER
AEENESEEBRRRESEGEBELE
BEES) - FEARBRMEMBIRIEHRDE - [
R R RENERNGBEUREE SRR

BTHRFNABRBEAERE  AEETEE AR
XN FRERM R EBER - MBRRD IR E AR
B BITHEE S & EDARKETS -

6.

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(c) Fair Value (Continued)
Except for borrowings as disclosed in Note 31, the
directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost
in the financial statements approximate their fair values
due to their immediate or short-term maturities.

Fair Value Measurements Recognised
in the Statement of Financial Position
The financial instruments that are measured subsequent
to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1
to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

—  Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market
for identical assets or liabilities.

—  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).

—  Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for
the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

As at 31 December 2011, the fair value of investments
held for trading amounted to approximately
HK$30,425,000 (2010: HK$19,913,000) is derived from
unadjusted quoted prices in active market for identical
assets and hence, its fair value measurement is grouped
into Level 1.

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in both
years.

Capital Risk Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.
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Capital Risk Management (Continued)
Several subsidiaries of the Company are regulated by the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission and are
required to comply with certain minimum capital requirements
according to the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Ordinance. Management monitors the Group’s liquid capital
to ensure meet the minimum liquid capital requirement in
accordance with the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total
equity as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s
strategy, which was unchanged from that of the year ended
31 December 2010 is to maintain a gearing ratio within 30%.
The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 were

as follows:

2011 2010
F#ET FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEE®E Total borrowings 284,041 172,565
EmABE Total equity 1,482,025 1,335,438
BARBELE Gearing ratio 19% 13%

WA 8. Revenue

AEETENELERREEHER 62X
% RMBEEB NS RIREEY - AEEF
MNZEEBDHTIT

The Group is principally engaged in ecological fertiliser
business, magnesium alloy business, metallurgical flux
business and financial services business. An analysis of the
Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

2011 2010

FTHET FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

SHE ERE R AR R Sales of ecological fertilisers 594,822 483,847
HE S EMD Sales of magnesium products 97,686 -
5 RS A T 2E Sales of metallurgical flux products 44,282 —
et & RRES Provision of financial services 26,604 9,924
763,394 493,771
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9. HER 9. Segment Information
MERARRRFTERAQRTHRAER (X Information reported to the Company’s Chief Executive
BEEBEARE)REZERBIEREELER - Officer, being the chief operating decision maker, for the
AEBBEBRBUEREERFESHLEE KR purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
WD FLT performance focuses on the operating divisions. The Group’s

operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are
therefore as follows:

—  HREEEHERK010F  BIERE —  Ecological fertiliser business (2010: known as agricultural
FEWBEMEL) auxiliary products business)

- BEeFE® —  Magnesium alloy business

—  RIAEER —  Metallurgical flux business

— SRR ER —  Financial services business

BAREBEZAIRMED LR TIXER ° Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments is

presented below.

PEHBARFEE Segment Revenue and Results
REBIZAIRE D2 WA REEITHT - The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable segments.

HZE2011F12A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2011:

RER #ag wE SRBH
EREH X% BEXE %

Ecological Magnesium Metallurgical Financial

fertiliser alloy flux services

business business business business Total
TET TERT TERT TERT TER

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

AHRA Segment revenue 594,822 97,686 44,282 26,604 763,394
AHERA Inter-segment revenue - - = = -
REMDEFHERA Revenue from external customers 594,822 97,686 44,282 26,604 763,394
PIEE Segment results 66,713 24,561 5,718 10,460 107,452
AR Other income and gains 82,701
HmATHER Central administrative costs (56,577)
BEER Finance costs (16,413)
BEEHANRR Profit before income tex 117,163
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9. EER (&) 9. Segment Information (Continued)

PEBMAREE ()
EHZE2010F12 A31 HILFE -

Segment Revenue and Results (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2010:

TEEXR ; s SRR
ERES ‘ BRI £/

Ecological  Magnesium  Metallurgical Financial

fertiliser alloy flux services
business business business business Total
THET THET THET THET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AEWA Segment revenue 483,847 - - 10,254 494,101

L ON Inter-segment revenue - - - (330) (330)
REIMBEEHIUA Revenue from external customers 483,847 - - 9,924 493,771

PEEE Segment results 67,009 - - 3,200 70,209
Hi A Rlfezs Other income and gains 68,057
RRITHER Central administrative costs (47,738)
BSER Finance costs (9,289)
BT A E A Profit before income tax 81,239

EXEFNZHEEA - BRERINBEEFREL
ZWA o Lkiflﬂ/“wﬁﬁﬁﬁ@moi
330,000/87T) ° D EPEHEEIR AT EAER]T -

ARENR 2 BB EAREE S BRAA
e DBMEEERYBORFRITRER(E
REZHH  HbbARKS - BHEERARR
BHRABEATEN B ZEE - WLAAEE
BERREREAPERBLER MG BR
B2HR

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no inter-
segment sales in current year (2010: HK$330,000). Inter-
segment transactions are entered into at arm-length.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment results
represent the results from each segment without allocation of
central administrative costs including directors’ emoluments,
other income and gains, finance costs and income tax
expense. This is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.
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9. AHER(E) 9. Segment Information (Continued)
PHEERAEE Segment Assets and Liabilities
R2011F 12 A31 B2 HMEERBENEZE The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2011
ZEEFERAREDP2ERAIAT and capital expenditure for the year then ended by reportable

segments are as follows:

EREE Bae R SRRS
JER 55 5 REER % N
Ecological Magnesium Metallurgical Financial
fertiliser alloy flux services Total
business business business business segments  Unallocated Total
TARL TER ThR TARL TET TET THR
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
PHEE Segment assets 284,543 251,754 675,123 82,616 1,294,036 776,376 2,070,412
PBEE Segment liabilties 147,248 93,950 156,033 24,074 421,305 167,082 588,387
REFRDEE Additions to non-current assets 41,671 25,539 28,331 1,107 96,648 10,041 106,689
R2010F 12 A1 Az HEERBENEE The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2010
ZB I FEEAIRED B2 ERFZAT ¢ and capital expenditure for the year then ended by reportable

segments are as follows:

ERERE 5% FRHE SRR
EHER 5% e 7% AEEF
Ecological  Magnesium  Metallurgical Financial

fertiiser alloy flux services Total

business business business business segments  Unallocated Total
THET TAT TAT TAT TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

DHAE Segment assets 320,846 210918 631,360 161,666 1,324,790 736340 2,061,130
AHEMHE Segment liabiities 66,800 22,463 202,026 117,949 411238 314,454 725,602
NEFRDEE Addtions to non-current assets 24,986 18,919 - 49 43,954 9,992 53,946
REKRERSFRERR S EEARER 2B For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
= allocating resources between segments:
- KREEYE ROFR BeRZFRR — all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
SHEAMNEMCEFEREE  BFEME - than investment properties, deposits with banks, cash
W E R E W IES - T & and cash equivalents and other assets for corporate use
EXDRENHRE S E o AN 520 A7 which including property, plant and equipment and
it ESREeRRBESESE & other receivables. Goodwill is allocated to financial
services business segment as described in Note 20;
and
— KROeoXEABZEERHEMENFKIEIN - — all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
FrEaEA EEEr RED L - than borrowings for corporate use and other payables.
EXARXBEHREYME W¥E - BERRK Capital expenditure comprises additions to investment
& THERE - FEENSE R EEED properties, property, plant and equipment, land use rights,
NE o BREETWE  BELREERTEA mining rights and exploration and evaluation assets. Except
BRBIN FTEEARRTHSMEDEL © for the additions to certain property, plant and equipment for

administrative purposes, all the capital expenditure was
allocated to segments.
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9. Segment Information (Continued)

HihpHER Other Segment Information

REZE2011F12 A31 BIEFE

ERER

Ecological

fertiliser
business

TEL
HK$'000

0E - BE RRENRE Depreciation of property, plant and

g4¢

%
Magnesium
alloy
business
TEx
HK$000

R

REER
Metallurgical
flux
business
TER
HK$'000

SRRS
%
Financial
services
business
ThRL
HK$'000

For the year ended 31 December 2011:

Unallocated
THRL
HK$'000

Total
TET
HK$'000

WENE equipment and investment properties 25,977 2,886 2,708 455 5,547 37,573
iR FRIEREY  Amortisation of land use rights, mining rights

BEBH and intangible assets 552 817 11,814 58 178 13,419
HENE HERFBESH  (Gainyloss on disposal of property,

(%) /Bi8 plant and equipment (2 = 23 - (1,419) (1,398)
BEBEZENFISMA  Interestincome from

held-to-maturity investment - - - (1,534) - (1,534)

BEEEREMESR Realised and unrealised loss

RAZZER on investments held for traing - - - 1,573 2,736 4,309
ARG Allowance for doubtful debts - - - 2,105 - 2,105
MEH(Ee),/ Bx Income tax (credit)/expense 15,538 (80) (1,359) 1,956 (10) 16,045

REZE2010F12 A31 HIEFE -

fertiiser
business
TATL
HK$'000

NE  BEREENRE Depreciation of property, plant and

ey
Magnesium

alloy
business
THr
HK$'000

=y Uyl
Metallurgical
flux
business
Th
HK$'000

services
business

T
HK$'000

For the year ended 31 December 2010:

ROR

Unallocated
TEL
HK$'000

Total
THn
HK$'000

WERE equipment and investment properties 29,526 676 - 110 8,856 39,168
B R ENAESEYE  Amortisation of land use rights
and intangible assets 1,067 665 - 19 168 1,909
HENE  HERZENER  Losson disposal of property,
plant and equipment 5 - - - = 5
BRI ZRENFISMA  Interestincome from
held-to-maturity investment 9 - - - (646) (655)
BEERREAMEEH Realised and unrealised (gain)/loss
RASR (k) BB on investments held for trading = - - (1,892) 2451 559
FiEH (%) /X Income tax (credlt)/expense 17,689 (76) - (197) - 17,416
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9.

104

7 EER () 9.
ETREMRBEENBA
AEBEBERLRBHRADT :

Segment Information (Continued)
Revenue from Major Products and Services
The Group’s revenue from its major products and services
were as follows:

2011 2010
FHET THBT
HK$’000 HK$'000

ERERZEER Ecological fertilisers:
BHAE Organic fertilisers 141,822 129,486
BAEE Compound fertilisers 400,066 307,159
) R G Biological pesticides - 2,673
WL o Sulfuric acid products 52,934 44,529
594,822 483,847
R m Magnesium products 97,686 =
JoR 818 KA 7 2 Metallurgical flux products 44,282 —
& RS Financial services 26,604 9,924
763,394 493,771

#thEE L Geographical Information

ARAEBENEREBURTEFE LA
AEEZINBEPBRATIRRFE,EE - )
WEEFHE 2 EF

FEEFER

MR E 22011 4F K2010E12 A31 A L EE
W EME TP 2 HEBBAREEBIA
210% - A EEEEERFRIERZS] -

No geographical information is presented as all of the Group’s
businesses are carried out in the PRC/Hong Kong and the
Group’s revenue from external customers is in the PRC/Hong
Kong.

Information About Major Customers

No information about major customers is presented as no
single customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue of
the Group during the years ended 31 December 2011 and
2010.
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10. Httg A K W=

10. Other Income and Gains

2011 2010

FHET FHIT

HK$’000 HK$'000

AW Rental income 4,038 2,589
FEWA Interest income:

— RITIFE — bank deposits 10,826 12,381

— BEIBRE — held-to-maturity investment 1,534 555

—EE — custodian 947 453
SN N Dividend income 643 604
fRis &I A Service fee income 488 244
HEWE  BER Gain on disposal of property,

HtE W plant and equipment 1,398 =
AT AR (FE) Government subsidy (note) 1,425 —
FEIEA Sundry income 849 249

22,148 17,068

B : BZE2011F 12 A31 BIEFE - BURHRIREK
PERERBTEGRMGEHEEOEDE -
TEERRE BT BCE TIR MR E B HARK
1,185,000 T °

11. EEHR

note: During the year ended 31 December 2011, government
subsidy represents the grant of approximately RMB1,185,000
from the Donghai District Government, the PRC, for the
technical improvement for energy saving and financing for the
metallurgical flux business.

11. Finance Costs

2011 2010

FEx TET

BRSERNTEEEZEE  Interest on borrowings wholly repayable
OIS within 5 years

HK$’000 HK$'000

16,413 9,289
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12.

106

PR
REFE SRR (GEA) M S B & #E

15

12. Income Tax Expense
The amount of income tax expense charged/(credited) to the
consolidated income statement represents:

2011 2010
TET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEAR IR Current tax
—BATEHR — Hong Kong Profits Tax 1,956 (421)
— PSR — PRC Enterprise Income Tax 16,624 17,689
—SBMETIS L — Australia Income Tax 61 _
EAETRIA (£ 32) Deferred taxation (Note 32) (2,596) 148
16,045 17,416

(a) BEEFEH
EBFEH TR E £2011F K20104F
12A31ALEFE 2B ERBTLA Z
16.5% 5T & ©

TERCEMSH(HPELERSE
#wl
BEFRBAEEE (A R
Frie B =B &P - 5200841 H1H
B PREARKMEMNBARZHES
25% °

(b)

HE2011F12A31BLEFE  BEA
TEREBGMAEMRMBR AR - TE#E
EREFAZEARAR - 5 CFM)
FREMEBERAR - HER(LEE)RE
BHRHAERATIREEEEMAIZERESR
FRARIERISESIE o

HE2010F12A31HIEFE  BEA
LRGEMEMHERBRAT - BINE
HEERE S HR AR - A5 (EE)
BERBRERBR AR - IaHERNE
FEBRAR - HEBCEM) ERER
BERAR - SRR %(EE)BR
ARIRALTRZ e BEBEEAR DA

(@) Hong Kong Profits Tax
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010.
(b) The PRC Enterprise Income Tax (The
“PRC EIT”)
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%
from 1 January 2008 onwards.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, Green Land
Bio-Products Company Limited, Jiangsu Azureblue
Technology Development Company Limited, Century
Sunshine (Zhangzhou) Ecological Technology Limited,
Century Sunshine (Shanghai) Management Company
Limited and &2 25 JE gl 8 %% & AR A & were loss
making.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, Green Land
Bio-Products Co. Ltd, @ /NEHEIRE ZERAA],
LHEHXEBREEREZEEES R A R, Jangsu
Azureblue Technology Development Company Limited,
Century Sunshine (Zhangzhou) Ecological Technology
Limited, Excellent Pesticide (Nanchang) Limited and
Baishan City Tianan Magnesium Resources Company
Limited were loss making.
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12. FiBHA X% () 12. Income Tax Expense (Continued)
(c) BINEH (c) Overseas Income Tax
RKARJIIREHREHREARDERASE The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
B BEREER AR - Wi as an exempted company with limited liability under the
EREHNREHENEH - AR AR Companies Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
HEBRZEEKR Y 2B AT TR EE exempted from Cayman Islands income tax. The
B AHEREEEANTEZEMAKS Company’s subsidiaries established in the British Virgin
TR RN BB R LS TEH o Islands were incorporated under the International

Business Companies Act of the British Virgin Islands
and, are exempted from British Virgin Islands income

tax.
Century Sunshine (Australia) Limited 7£ & Century Sunshine (Australia) Limited was incorporated
MEEM AL - R E ZE 2011412 A 31 in Australia and incurred tax expense of HK$61,000
HIFFEEARBERY 61,0004 7T(2010 during the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010:
F:FBT) HKS$NI).
7N £2 B W9 BR BT E B AT S K1 B A R B 1 2 pOiE The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from
FRE25% st EMIERE BN =R T ¢ the theoretical amount that would arise using a tax rate of
25%, the standard income tax rate of the PRC enterprises, as
follows:

2011 2010
F#ET BT
HK$’000 % HK$’000
B PTG A% AT A Profit before income tax 117,163 81,239
REAEHE 25% Tax charge at applicable income
(20104 : 25%) tax rate of 25% (2010: 25%)
FTEMRIES W 29,291 25.0 20,310 25.0
REMBNA RS S HME  Effect of different tax rates of
REMTRBEZ 28 subsidiaries operating in
other jurisdictions (3,109) (2.6) 445 0.5
HEZRFRMA 2 RIS 2E  Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose (20,943) (17.9) (14,920) (18.9)
AR 2 BIEFR S 2 Tax effect of expenses not
b7 deductible for tax purpose 7,528 6.4 3,274 4.0
SRS B R Over-provision of tax in
previous year (108) (0.1) — —
AR ARER 2 HiFEEE  Utiisation of previous
unrecognised tax losses (4,747) (4.0) — —
ERER 2 [HETTRTEEEH)  Tax effect of estimated tax losses
Mg not recognised 8,133 6.9 8,307 10.2
FisEif Income tax expense 16,045 13.7 17,416 21.4
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12. FIBHAX ()

MR2011 12 A31 B RNEBARBERTIEEE
#9138,472,0007 7T (20104 : 123,488,000/5
JT) B A58 DAY 8 5K SR PE SR Bl 1) © 98,712,000
75 70 (2010 4F & %991,348,0007% 7t ) 2 % 1B &
BHERERREFHE T EFRER;RFRE
Hj -+ if1 39,760,000 7 7T (2010 4F : 732,140,000
BIL) 2 HIBBIERA T UERBLESE - AR
ReBEZERT G RUATEEE ERE A
TMIBEEE - RSP IEEE 2ELEHIEK
AT ARHERR ©

12. Income Tax Expense (Continued)

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has unrecognised tax
losses of approximately HK$138,472,000 (2010:
approximately HK$123,488,000), which can be carried
forward to offset future taxable profit. Tax losses of
HK$98,712,000 (2010: approximately HK$91,348,000) will
expire after five years from the year of assessment they relate
to while tax losses of HK$39,760,000 (2010: approximately
HK$32,140,000) can be carried forward indefinitely. The
deferred tax benefit of such tax losses has not been
recognised as it is not considered probable that future taxable
profit will be available to utilise the unused tax losses.

13. FR=F 13. Profit for the Year

FRRFEMER(ER) THER : Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2011 2010
FHE T FABT
HK$’000 HK$’000
ITERF® Wages and salaries 45,322 31,813
RTYEENEE ZBIE Share options granted to directors
and employees - —
TE R SR IRETE (i sEa) Payment to defined contribution
retirement plans (note a) 2,213 942
BWE T (BIEEEFH) Total staff costs (including directors’

(BzE14) emoluments) (Note 14) 47,535 32,755
1% SR 7 A Auditors’ remuneration 1,280 1,280
s M k5N Depreciation and amortisation 50,992 41,077
REREHE Allowance for doubtful debts 2,105 —
HEWX  BEREZEZ (Gain)/loss on disposal of property,

(Wezs) B 1R plant and equipment (1,398) 5
FERAER A2 Cost of inventories recognised as

an expense 528,708 333,012
THREF 2 LEEHRNES Operating lease rentals in respect of
land and buildings 4,436 1,259
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13. FAER (&)

GEE

(@)

PERRIFAPIRT  AEESEF
1B B 17— IR ET & B e R IRET 85N
&t BN ERERET 8 - RIFE I
FORE  AEBEREEFHFEH14%(A
ZAtEIER WARFEHKZIN K
SEMEARERINEZEIRKE
B2 BAE - ZIBARBUT 2 W ERIRGH
SRERNEENENEESHE -

AEEEREFBRELIRERFE
mES BN ERMEREE - fBT
EREAEE - RIEBESE - AKHE
REFERBASARERNEAES
iz 1 8 WA 2 5% 1% A A% a8
R AEBERBERRZ ERAEE A
1,000 BT °

HE2011F12A31ALFE - XEH
mEmEEZSEFEELANHKRE
#8#72,218,0008 7T (20104F : 4£7942,000
HBIL) o 201112 A31H » AEEY
B M T 1S DS WU 3R AT AR A AR
EBRRAEFR (20105 « THIT) ©

2011 FF3§
ANNUAL REPORT 2011

13. Profit for the Year (Continued)

note:

@)

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group contributes to a state-sponsored retirement plan
for its employees in the PRC, which is a defined
contribution plan. The Group contributes approximately
14% of the employees’ salary as specified by the local
government, and the Group has no future obligations
for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement plan is responsible for the entire
pension obligations to retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the MPF Scheme, a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF
Scheme, each of the Group and its Hong Kong
employees makes monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ earings as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the Group’s
and the employees’ contributions are subject to a cap
of HK$1,000 per month.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the
aggregate amount of the Group’s contributions to the
aforementioned pension schemes was approximately
HK$2,213,000 (2010: approximately HK$942,000). As
at 31 December 2011, the Group was not entitled to
any forfeited contributions to reduce the Group’s future
contributions (2010: HK$NIl).
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14. EEFHEESHFMA L 14. Directors’ Emoluments and Individuals
with Highest Emoluments
(a) EEEHEA (a) Directors’ Emoluments
HE2011F12A31BLEFEREE The emoluments of each director for the year ended 31
FE T December 2011 is set below:

2 Hi g7 STl
Employer's
contribution

Other  to pension
Name of director Fees Salaries benefits scheme Total
TET TET TAT TET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

HTESRTHRER Executive director and CEO

HXE Chi Wen Fu - 884 - 12 896

HiTEZ Executive directors

Lt Shum Sai Chit = 455 - 12 467

2% ChiBiFen - 455 - - 455

FHTES Non-executive director

BRE Guo Mengyong' 28 - - - 28

BYERTES Independent non-executive

directors

BRX Kwong Ping Man 70 = = = 70

ELE: Liu Hoi Keung 50 = - - 50

Bt Sheng Hong 30 = - - 30
178 1,794 - 24 1,996

L R2011F2 A1 HEZE L Appointed on 1 February 2011
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14. EEFHRESHFMAL 14. Directors’ Emoluments and Individuals

(#&) with Highest Emoluments (Continued)

(a) EEHM(E) (a) Directors’ Emoluments (Continued)
HE2010F12A31BLFEREE 2 The emoluments of each director for the year ended 31
ST December 2010 is set below:

E g BEES
Employer's
contribution
Other to pension
Name of director Fees Salaries benefits scheme Total
FATL T Fia7 T FATL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HTESRITBAR Executive director and CEO
HXE ChiWen Fu — 884 — 12 896
HiTES Executive directors
i Shum Sai Chit — 455 - 12 467
RS ChiBi Fen - 455 - - 455
HEE Tang Ying Kit' - 202 - 5 297
FHTES Non-executive director
e Wong May Yuk® = - — _ _
BYFHTES Independent non-executive
directors
B Kwong Ping Man 80 - - _ 80
KigEe Chu Wai Wa, Fangus? 23 _ _ _ 23
BR% Liu Hoi Keung 80 _ _ _ 80
Bt Sheng Hong* = - - _ _

183 2,086 = 29 2,298

R20104%5 A1 BEHE
R2010%7 A1 HEHT
720104 8 A 31 HEHE
R 20109 A 24 BEZ (T

Resigned on 1 May 2010
Resigned on 1 July 2010
Resigned on 31 August 2010
Appointed on 24 September 2010

S
N N
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14. EEFMRESHFMAL 14. Directors’ Emoluments and Individuals
(&) with Highest Emoluments (Continued)
(b) 5NUBSHMAL (b) Five Highest Paid Individuals
RER - AEBNUEEFMALRE The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
(2010F : 1A ) ARAIES EHES in the Group for the year included no (2010: one)
MEMDTER EXEE - FRENT director for the Company whose directors’ emoluments
Z 50 (20104F : 4fz) AL 2B T - are disclosed in the above analysis. The emoluments

payable to such five (2010: four) individuals during the
year are as follows:

2011 2010
FHET TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
HAE® - BAEE Basic salaries, share options,
HAbEAE REYF R other allowances
and benefits in kind 4,949 8,560
EREER — THEREE Pension costs-defined
contribution plan 156 28
5,105 8,588
547 (2010 4F : 447 ) B = E BN A B = B The emoluments of the five (2010: four) individuals with
BRUAT 50 : the highest emoluments are within the following bands:
A
Number of individuals
2011 2010
£ % 1,000,000 7T Nil - HK$1,000,000 3 2
1,000,001 7L 2 2,000,000787C  HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 2 1
2,000,001 #5702 3,000,000  HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 - —
3,000,001 # 7T 4,000,000 7% 7T HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 - =
4,000,001 72 5,000,00078 7  HK$4,000,001 — HK$5,000,000 - 1
5 4
(c) »HER REFEBERERAQTE SN (¢) During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
S5UREEHMA T MERIESEAIA any of the directors of the Company and the five highest
AREESHINANEBRFA LR - SiEARE paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
B8 (20104 : D) © the Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2010:
HKS$NIl).
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15. B2

15. Dividend

2011 2010

TR TAET
HK$’000 HK$'000

R AR HARR S
FRE R 0.35 7811
(20104 : &%7L)

Proposed final dividend of HKO.35 cents
(2010: HK$NIil) per ordinary share

9,026 =

BRRABREAFBRRRARRE2012F56 A
17 BRITZBRRBFERE LHE - HEH R
R RERUEAR S

The proposed final dividend is to be approved by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on 17 May 2012. These financial statements do not
reflect this dividend payable.

2011 2010

FBT FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000

FAERABDIK Dividend recognised as distribution
RS during the year:
2010 F R KA Y 2010 final dividend
NS FRTBREET declared and paid HK$NIl
(20094F : 0.457ll) (2009: HKO0.45 cents) per ordinary share - 10,138
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16. BREF| 16. Earnings Per Share
(@ EX (a) Basic
EREXRBFZRERNQAES ARG Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
A BRAFAE BITEBERMETY profit attributable to owners of the Company by the
HETE - weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

2011 2010

RNATEE AEG R (F487T)  Profit attributable to owners of the

Company (HK$’'000) 96,541 72,669
DETE AR INE S (TA) Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue ('000) 2,578,903 2,291,086
R EARZF| (IR Basic earnings per share
(HK cents per share) 3.74 1l cents 3.171llicents
(b) #8 (b) Diluted
R ELE 2011 F £ 2010612 31 H 1E Diluted earnings per share was same as the basic
FETEBETESTL AR AtERE earnings per share as there were no potential dilutive
SERFEGREARZFER - ordinary shares in existence during the year ended 31

December 2011 and 2010.

17. T {E AR 17. Land Use Rights
REER TP AEP 2 EREENKEEHES The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
3 HEREFEIMET ¢ operating lease payments and their net carrying values are

analysed as follows:

2011 2010
FHT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEARE - ARIENHIBIARA ¢ Inthe PRC, held on:

FREIRE ALY Medium term leases 150,108 149,300
mENEE Current assets 3,330 3,082
ERMENEE Non-current assets 146,778 146,218

150,108 149,300
2011412 A31 H - BREE A4 137,126,000 As at 31 December 2011, land use rights with a carrying
7 70 (2010 4F : #994,089,000/8 7T ) 2 T 1 {5 amount of approximately HK$137,126,000 (2010:
REEERRITEE 2T (FizE31) - approximately HK$94,089,000) have been pledged to secure

bank borrowings (Note 31).
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18. Y% - BMERRE 18. Property, Plant and Equipment
(a) &=~£H (@) The Group
A
EELih #2 BiR HRIR
(&) @6 WEEE  BREREE  BOERB } il (& i)
Freehold Furniture Construction-
land Buildings  Leasehold Plantand  and office in-progress
(note (i) (note (i)} improvements  machinery  equipment Ship (note (ii))
AT AT AT Thr Thn y Tan Tan
HKS1000 HKS000  HKS000  HK$000 HK$ 000
273 COST
R2010£181A Asat 1 January 2010 3218 44,889 0,147 126,266 6,151 5087 - 158,389 34,147
HE Addiions = = 206 12718 29 180 - 46,369 48302
E Transfers = 1375 % 4064 ) = = (6:321) =
i Disposals - - - (173) - (7) - - 230)
BEKENBAARE Addiions through acouisttion
of subsidiaries - 1173 % 8702 49 1849 1,183 = 18,444
tE-HKEAR Disposal of a subsiciary - - - - 9 (349) - - (w4n)
ERERENE Transferto ivestment properties
(Hiz19) (Note 19) - - - - - - - (39,724 (39,724
B Exchange aignment g 1870 7% 494 346 179 - 6011 14532
20105126318 As at 31 December 2010
R01E1A1B and 1 January 2011 36% 49307 21,976 145,061 7259 6889 1,183 164,724 400,024
8 Addiions = 1,130 514 9,056 707 613 = 71425 83445
% Transfers - 91,546 - 71,042 - - - (162,588) -
i3 Disposals @3701) (1,702 (101) (116) (128) (20) (192) = (6149
LE-HKBAR Disposal of subsidaries = = = (10981) @) = = = (11,002
B Exchange aignment 76 3033 72 5938 12 20 kit 4202 14,342
R0HE128318 As t 31 December 2011 - 143314 2,116 20000 799 7506 1,028 71,763 480666
ZiERAE ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
201051718 Asat 1 Janvary 2010 = 21,340 17447 66,518 202 239 - 714 10413
ERTE Charge for the year - 6,715 3423 21,350 1,35 975 - - 33818
BRERANE Transfer to investment properties
(Ht19) (Note 19) - - - - - - - 2 122)
HERHE Eliminated on clisposel - - - o - - - - on
tE-HNEAR Disposal of a subsiciary - - - - (@] (144) - - (191)
ERHEE Exchange aignment - 1,0% 754 3329 158 13 - 8 5397
20105124318 As at 31 December 2010
R0HE1A1B and 1 January 2011 = 29,090 21,504 91,100 3492 3342 = = 148618
ERfTE Charge for the year - 6,856 454 22,664 1,585 1,004 212 - 32,865
it 6 Elminated on disposal = (666) ) (&) ©) ) (10 = 960)
HE—HHEAR Disposal of subsicaries = = = (10.969) 19 - = - (10,981)
Eid Exchange aignment - 1,078 731 3297 62 116 3 - 5287
R0HE12831A As t 31 December 2011 - 36,358 2,707 106,012 5036 4511 205 - 174829
REFE NET CARRYING VALUES
2011512831 R As at 31 December 2011 - 106,956 409 113,988 2,903 2,995 823 71,763 305,837
20105124318 Asat 31 December 2010 36% 20217 3 53,061 3767 3547 1,183 164,724 251,406
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18. Y% - BERRZE (&) 18. Property, Plant and Equipment

(Continued)
(a) &~&£E (&) (@) The Group (Continued)
PiE - notes:

() KARBLIHIIREBAIMNGE o

=
=

Freehold land is held outside Hong Kong.

iy ZEEFARFEH - (i) The buildings are situated in the PRC.

@iy P 2011 F & 20104F 12 A 31 A& (i)  No interest was capitalised and included in
MEHER L REFTALETRRNA construction-in-progress as at 31 December
BRAERIRZHITIAT 2011 and 2010. An analysis of construction-in-

progress is as follows:
2011 2010
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000
B3 Buildings 10,087 48,127
R K i 22 Plant and machinery 67,676 116,597
77,763 164,724

(v) 2011128318 B @ & (iv)
B #4978,534,00078 7T (20104F : 49

As at 31 December 2011, buildings and plant and
machinery with a carrying amount of

7,707,000 70) 2% » BE K&
HEEBRTEER ZIEM (KT
31) °
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approximately HK$78,534,000 (2010:
approximately HK$7,707,000) have been pledged
to secure bank borrowings (Note 31).



2011 FF3§
ANNUAL REPORT 2011

B ISR AL

Notes to the Financial Statements
HE2011F12 A1 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

18. 1% - BMEKRZE (B 18. Property, Plant and Equipment
(Continued)
(b) A&AF (b) The Company
L ES] "E okl
Leasehold Motor
improvements vehicle Total
THIT THET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A COST
®2010%F1A1H As at 1 January 2010 314 902 1,216
[ 5 % Exchange alignment 9 25 34
R2010F 128318 As at 31 December 2010,
201151 A18 1 January 2011 and
K 2011412 A 31 H 31 December 2011 323 927 1,250
REE ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
R2010461 A 1A As at 1 January 2010 314 286 600
ERNITE Charge for the year — 172 172
& Exchange alignment 9 8 17
2010512 A31 B As at 31 December 2010 and
K20114%1 /1A 1 January 2011 323 466 789
FNME Charge for the year - 191 191
®2011€12A31H As at 31 December 2011 323 657 980
BREFE NET CARRYING VALUES
H2011512831H As at 31 December 2011 - 270 270
2010612 4318 As at 31 December 2010 - 461 461

117



HREAREZRARATF
CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Br 35 S R B

Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE2011F12A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

18. ¥% - BB K& (F&)

BB FITEMEME - BB REEZEEE
MAESHER  H2011FE7 A1 H#E - AEE
DRNERTEH AT BB FRFH 2 (A5

18. Property, Plant and Equipment

(Continued)

Upon opinions of independent technical advisors on accessing
economic useful lives of property, plant and equipment,
effective from 1 July 2011, the Group revised its estimate of

the useful lives respectively as follows:

RBIERT

DA E S AIERAEH

M - BERZEER Revised

Category of property, Former remaining

plant and equipment useful lives useful lives

M Mk Plant and machinery 5 Fyears 5-254F years
g Buildings 5-10£F years HEHR

BEERE BRRISITHRARSEEZKBER
FHIREEER ZHE - ZIEFT oI BN BESF
EREBEZWE BERRBZNERIRIH
1,414,000 7T - UREKRFEHARBEZME
R K 3 2 T ER Uk 4> 1,912,000 7T ©

RAFE ¥ BEEREBZERBFHL

T

— 1&¥F HEER
— MEEE 2E5F
— BE K #Es 5F 254
— B RFAERE 54

— RE 54

— f 54
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Over the lease
terms

The directors are of the opinion that the revision will give a
more realistic measurement of the economic useful lives of
these assets. Such revision has resulted in a reduction in
depreciation charges on property, plant and equipment
acquired in previous years by approximately HK$1,414,000
and on new additions during the year by HK$1,912,000.

The useful lives of property, plant and equipment adopted for
the current year are as follows:

— Buildings Over the lease terms
— Leasehold improvements 210 5 years

— Plant and machinery 5 to 25 years

— Furniture and office equipment 5 years

— Motor vehicles 5 years

— Ship 5 years
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19. REWZE

19. Investment Properties

THAET
HK$'000

R COST
$R2010%F1A1H As at 1 January 2010 84,250
INE Additions 4,742
PE H i Exchange alignment 4,382
s E YL - B R (M3E18)  Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note 18) 39,002
©K2010F12 A31 A& As at 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011

201141 A1 H 132,376
PE W, 828 Exchange alignment 4,473
R2011F12 A31 H As at 31 December 2011 136,849
HEtineE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
®2010%F1 A1H As at 1 January 2010 8,810
FRITE Charge for the year 5,350
TE 5, 8% Exchange alignment 477
©K2010%F12 A31 A& As at 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011

201141 A1 H 14,637
FARITE Charge for the year 4,708
PE 5 A Exchange alignment 565
MK2011E12H31H As at 31 December 2011 19,910
REFE NET CARRYING VALUES
H2011512H881H As at 31 December 2011 116,939
R2010%F12 A31H As at 31 December 2010 117,739
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19.

120

REWM=E (&)
BAYEERBT YRS —
g -

HRE_SHEHEDN

B EMERBERAAEREETINE -

R2011F12 A31 B » "EBIREWMEZ AR
B 49/4121,323,0008 7T {6 B B2 7N & [
MBS 2B E B AEMBIERE R AEIE
H o RETEBLEB LA ERGEMELZ
HERSEEL 2T EER  AEBZREY
ER2011FE12 A31 BRBERIE - HEIKEZ
EZHRUMENZ SEERTHBRERETE °

KREER2010F12 31 BIREMEZ A AE
#15122,082,00078 T - WEB Y & ERFE
HEMELEE - R2010F12 A1 B2 2%
BEEHARAEZEEETE  REBRBLHRKES
MEAER SETmENMNBRES REE
B} WERAARMEHARESRE B RERT
TR R IR TSRS 2 R K 18.0% R IiTE
& 538%:THE o

REBZE2011F12 31 BILLFE  HEMER
EE 2% KA A4,038,000/% 7T (20104 :
2,589,000 7T ) + & B ¥ & 53.5% (2010
F22%) o

PR EMEAEREERE

E 7 LA bR BRAR 4V

19. Investment Properties (Continued)

The investment properties represent the buildings related to
phase one and phase two of the Yunxiao properties.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2011 was approximately HK$121,323,000. The
valuation was performed by independent qualified valuers not
connected with the Group, on the replacement cost
approach. Based on the result of management’s assessment
by making reference to the valuation report issued by the
independent qualified valuers, there is no impairment on the
carrying amount of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2011. The valuation was arrived at by reference to
market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2010 was approximately HK$122,082,000. No
valuation has been performed by independent qualified
professional valuers. The fair value as at 31 December 2010
has been determined by the directors of the Company and is
arrived at discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows with growth rate of 13.0% and
discount rate of 5.38% that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of
the cash flows.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, rental income of
HK$4,038,000 (2010: HK$2,589,000) and rental yield of 3.5%
(2010: 2.2%) were generated from the investment properties.

The carrying amounts of investment properties shown above
comprise:

2011 2010
TAT
HK$'000

TEx
HK$’000

Land outside Hong Kong
Medium-term lease

116,939 117,739
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20. BLEE 20. Intangible Assets
[} HiAE R5%E efes EF%E BERE @t
Technical Trading Club Customer Development
Goodwill know-how right  membership I costs Total
AL TAL ThL FhL ThL FhL
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 j HK$000 HK$ 000
A cOST
R010F1A18 Asat1 January 2010 4 3413 - - - 8416 11871
WENBAF Acquisiton of subsiciaries 21408 - 500 80 1,166 - 23152
EiA% Exchange alignment 2 129 = = = 318 449
R010E12 A31H Asat 31 December 2010
RO1E1A18 and 1 January 2011 21450 3542 500 80 1,166 8734 35472
AE Addtions = = = = = = =
R Exchange alignment 1 120 = - = 29 47
RO1E12 31 A As at 31 December 2011 21,451 3662 500 80 1,166 9030 35,889
ESE £ ACCUMULATED
AMORTISATION
AND IMPAIRMENT
R010F1A1A Asat 1 January 2010 Iy 3413 = = = 7521 10976
FNEH Amortised dluring the year - - - - 19 Iy 736
B A% Exchange alignment 2 129 - - - 304 43
2010512 431 B As at 31 December 2010
RO1E1A1A and 1 January 2011 4 3542 - = 19 8542 12,147
EREy Amortised during the year - - = = 59 19 255
EHAE Bxchange alignment 1 120 - - - 29 43
R011E12 431 A As at 31 December 2011 4 3662 - = 78 9030 12815
EEFE NET CARRYING VALUES
R2011£12531F As at 31 December
2011 21,406 - 500 80 1,088 - 23,074
2010412 A31 A As at 31 December 2010 21406 = 500 80 1,147 19 23305
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20.

122

BEPEE (&)
BEHENREELEMNRERNR

BEUBENHEEARENAMAEZATRS
ELBM([REELEM]) :

o TRURBER
AEESFAAAEBRSHERE  WETFR

PRI BEIR(E - RIS RIS o

BRBEBER  PEERSELBELNHE
FREENT

20. Intangible Assets (Continued)

Impairment Tests for Cash-generating
Units Containing Goodwill

Goodwill acquired has been allocated for impairment testing
purposes to the following cash generating unit (“CGU”):

° financial services business
The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more
frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be

impaired.

Before recognition of impairment losses, the carrying amount
of goodwill was allocated to CGU as follows:

2011 2010

F#ET THBIT

HK$’000 HK$'000

SRR RS Financial services business 21,406 21,406
SRRIE X Financial Services Business

ReEFBEMMAIKESENDENEREBS
g MEABBERHEAFTRREREEE - A
SEFFAZNER AR E AT TE
FReRReEESEMN)  MEZEMBATR
HE2012FF2016512 A31 B ILFERNFE -
HRH SRR A R EERE - s EHEE
HFE - FRABS.39% MR RE  ZEREK
REEMREELEBMH—RIL - BERA
WEKB.30%MIMTREFH - EFHHEE -
EEAWE S EARENEEZMRE  BIEEE
MEEARERENE— S  TIeS%E
7 BREER A AT B £ 58 -

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are based on value-in-
use calculations which are determined by the discounted cash
flow method. The data from the Group’s detailed planning is
used to project cash flows of the subsidiaries (cash generating
units) to which the goodwill related for provision of financial
services to five years ending 31 December 2012 to 2016. For
the years following the detailed planning period, the assumed
growth rates of 3.39% are used which comply with general
expectations for the relevant CGU. The present value of cash
flows is calculated by discount rates of 11.30%. The directors
believe that any reasonably possible further change in the key
assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based
would not cause the carrying amount of the unit to exceed its
recoverable amount.
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21. RiERE 21. Mining Rights

A

$R2010%F1A1H

COST

As at 1 January 2010

THET
HK$'000

W BB R Acquisition of subsidiaries 505,376
R20105E12 A1 B R As at 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011

201141 A1 H 505,376
WER R EEEEA (MFE22) Transfer from exploration and evaluation assets (Note 22) 36,263
NE Additions 23,243
bEE 5, EE Exchange alignment 17,971
R2011F12 A31 H As at 31 December 2011 582,853
2Tt EERRE ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND

IMPAIRMENT

©®2010%1 418 - As at 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 and —

201012 A31 A& 1 January 2011

201141 A1 H
FRITE Charge for the year 9,880
BEE 5, FE X Exchange alignment 4
R2011F 12 A31 H As at 31 December 2011 9,884
BREFE NET CARRYING VALUES
A2011512H31H As at 31 December 2011 572,969
R2010F12 A31 H As at 31 December 2010 505,376

BREARKER MREECREERBEARF

B -

2007 E9 A13H IHERILTARARE
LERA TR RER L  WEPEI&S
RIEGH RIS AREHRERE P RAED
AR 4,555,000 7T © 8258 15 50 B BA R 2 4+
IR B EH A E fth 8 < 5k K & HA FE A k18 (BT =

33) o

The balance represents mining rights that amortised by the

production quantity over the ore reserve.

On 13 September 2007, Jiangsu Longteng Petrochemical
Limited entered into an agreement with T & & + ith & JR B
(“Jiangsu Land and Resources department”) to acquire a
mining right of 3 /& & A A #Z (“Donghai Serpentine mine”)
which located in Donghai County of Jiangsu Province, the

PRC, at consideration of approximately RMB4,555,000. The
remaining balance would be paid upon maturity and it was
included in other payables and long-term payables (Note 33).
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21. RIERE (&)
K20 E7A1A - BRI ERAEMAITHY -
BLUmAZEBHEREARARERABREL
EESEAT  MDERTHEED BB EHE
B - RARIE BB EMNE 2 A ERES 2 5KIE
FFARE 0 EER 20304 11 A2 BER °

BER P EEENR2011E6 AR ZAAE
#9755 158,503,000 7 7T ° {d 1E H3 B AN &% [ M
RAE 2 B A S EERETT - R2011F6 A
S0 R ZARERBARRRE R ZITARLRE
BRMBE L% EN - REEEELEBYA
BRAEMED ZHERSRZTHER -
SEZHFERTHEER2011F6A30H 2
IREEYEHE -

22, BIFERFMEEE

21. Mining Rights (Continued)

On 1 July 2011, as the technical feasibility can be
demonstrable, Baishan City Tianan Magnesium Resources
Company Limited had started the production of magnesium
alloys in Baishan and the exploration and evaluation assets
had transferred to mining rights. The Company had obtained
a mining licence, which is expiring on 2 November 2030, for
the dolomite mine located at Jilin Province.

The fair value of the exploration and evaluation assets was
approximately HK$158,503,000 as at 30 June 2011. The
valuation was performed by independent qualified valuer not
connected with the Group. The fair value as at 30 June 2011
is arrived at discounted cash flow projection based on future
cash flows with discount rate of 8%. Based on the result of
management’s assessment by making reference to the
valuation report issued by independent qualified valuer, there
is no impairment on the carrying amount of the Group’s
exploration and evaluation assets as at 30 June 2011.

22. Exploration and Evaluation Assets

TAT
HK$'000

®2010%F1 A1H At 1 January 2010 33,410
NE Additions 902
BEE 3 3 B Exchange alignment 1,290
20105612 A31 H At 31 December 2010

& 20111 H1H and 1 January 2011 35,602
R 2 e (P aE21) Transfer to mining rights (Note 21) (36,263)
FE H, R Exchange alignment 661

H2011%12H831H

At 31 December 2011 -

BREHEEERIMNRTESHENBER
BEOREEMRRBEERMY MR
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The exploration and evaluation assets represented the right
for exploration in a dolomite mine located at Jilin Province, the
PRC with the expenditures incurred in the search for mineral
resources.
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23. AHIBARIZREREWKE AT 23. Investments in and Amounts Due from

;I Subsidiaries
(a) AMBRATRIZRE (a) Investments in Subsidiaries
¥ /N
The Company
2011 2010
FET FHAIT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BE - RKAE Investments, at cost:
FE EmARZR Unlisted share capital 2,109 2,109
R2011EF12A318  AEBHEENR Particulars of the Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
BARZFFEAT December 2011 are as follow:

Rilwet s TR ER{TRS/

REARRER GILE S ARiMRA FRARENERRIL RS RENRERLA
Place of Principal Particulars of

incorporation activities and issued share/ Proportion ownership

and kind of place of paid up interest holding Proportion of

legal entity operation registered capital by the Company voting power held
B 53
Directly Indirectly
2011 2010 2011 2010

ATRZ S BERE hE BREELT RHRRERHEE AR gRRA - - 56.6%  566%  56.6%  566%
BRAR The PR, limited SRRENER ARH70,500,00070
Baishan City liabilty company Manufacturing and sale Registered and
Tianan Magnesium of magnesium-related paid up capital of
Resources Company Limited products in the PRC RMB70,500,000
FREERRAA ZERAES REEREER 100RERRER 100%  100% - - 100%  100%
Bright Stone Group Limted BRELAR Investment holding in HE10ET
British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares
limitect iabilty company of US$1.00 each
ERRERRAA ARRAER REBRERR 1RERRER 100%  100% - - 100%  100%
CapitalIdea Investments BREAAR Investment holoing in HE10ET
Limited British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong 1 ordinary share
fimited liabifty company of US$1.00 each
AR £ R A AREEAA REBRERR 1000k ZBHER - - 100% 100%  100% 100%
ERAR Hong Kong, imited Investment holding in HE100ET
Century Sunshine liabilty company Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares
Ecological Technology of HK$1.00 each
Limited
HEBR (ER) RERER e BREAAT RS REE R RRA - - 100%  f00%  100%  100%
ERARAA The PRC, limited BRIERR ABRH40,000,00070
libilty company EEE Registered and
Research and paid up capital
development RMB40,000,000
and sale of organic
fertisers and biclogical
pesticides in the PRC
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23. AMIBATIZIREREWKE AT 23. Investments in and Amounts Due from

FIE (48) Subsidiaries (Continued)
(a) RMIBARZIRE (HE) (a) Investments in Subsidiaries
(Continued)
MRS IEXH ERTRE/
REARRER NEELY BREMRAZHE LNSEZL LT il 3 FANRZELA
Place of Principal Particulars of
incorporation activities and issued share/ Proportion ownership
and kind of place of paid up interest holding Proportion of
legal entity operation registered capital by the Company voting power held
Ef 3
Directly Indirectly
2011 2010 2011 2010
%% (17) £5 hE - BRAEAR RPESEREE R RRA - - 100%  100%  100%  100%
HiERAR The PRC, limted BRIEH 31,800,007
Century Sunshine fiability company Manufacturing and Registered and
(Jiangx) Ecological sale of organic paid up capital
Technology Limited fertilisers in the PRC HK$31,800,000
R (HT) hE BREELT RAERERHE R gREA - - 100%  100%  100%  100%
ENTRERAA The PR, limited BRIEH 700000037
Century Sunshine liabilty company Manufacturing and Registered and
(Nan Ping) Biology sale of organic paid up capital
Engineering Company Limited fertiisers in the PRC HK$7,000,000
RIER (L) REHA hE - BRREAR RPERERR AR RRA - - 100%  100%  100%  100%
BRAR The PRC, limited Investment holding 9,800,000%7C
Century Sunshine fiability company inthe PRC Registered and
(Shangha) paid up capital
Management Company /589,800,000
Limited
X () 5 hE EREEAT R ERARR R EA - - 100%  100%  100%  100%
MEERAR The PRO, limited Investment holding 30,000,007
Century Sunshine fiability company inthe PRC Registered and
(Zhangzhou) paid up capital
Ecological HK$30,000,000
Technology Limited
HEFEARAA Eh BRREAA REAREER 10000 ERKER - - 56.6%  566%  56.6%  566%
([hEIEE]) Hong Kong, imited Investment holding AE1ET
China Magnesium Limited fiability company in Hong Kong 10,000 ordlinary shares
(‘China Magnesium’) of HK$1 each
First Conogpt Investment RERAES REARERK 1REBRER - - 5% 5% 5% 75%
Holdings Limited BRELAR Investment holding AE10ET
(Hsk2) British Virgin sands, inHong Kong 1 orcinary share of
(note 2) limited fiabilty company US$1.00 each
BAERAA &h BRREAA REAREER 100RERRER - - 100%  100%  100%  100%
Fly Union Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding AfE1.00%7T
(Hsk2) libifty company in Hong Kong 100 orcinary shares of
(note 2) HK$1.00 each
KEEEERAT ABRTES REARERRK 2000 B EBHER - - 8AB%  B45%  848%  845%
Fullocean Group Limited BREARR Investment holding AE00IET
British Virgin Islands, in Hong Kong 2,000 ordinary shares
limited fiabilty 0f US80.01 each
company
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23. AFB AR ZREREWK B AT 23. Investments in and Amounts Due from
Subsidiaries (Continued)
(a) Investments in Subsidiaries

FE ()

(a) RBARZRE (F)

(Continued)

MRS IEXH B3R/
REARRER GIl-Ech ] BREMRAZHE LNSEZE LT il 3 KANRZELA
Place of Principal Particulars of
incorporation activities and issued share/ Proportion ownership
and kind of place of paid up interest holding Proportion of
legal entity operation registered capital by the Company voting power held
Ef 53
Directly Indirectly
2011 2010 2011 2010
RREARRARRE e BRAEAR RPERERR AR RRA - - 100%  100%  100%  100%
ERAR The PRG, limited Investment holaing AR100,000,00070
fiability company inPRC Registered and
paid up capital of
RMB100,000,000
(ol Strategy ABRAEE REAREER 1REARER - - 100%  100%  100%  100%
Investments Limited AREAAR Investment holding &ZEf[
(‘Gold Strategy’) British Virgin Islands, in Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of
(BfzE2) limited liabilty company no par value each
(note 2)
REALEGRIEN hE - BRAEAR RPESEREE AR RRA - - 100%  100%  100%  100%
AnARAF The PR, limited BHRIEH 10,500,007
Green Land Bio-Products fiability company Manufacturing and Registered and
Company Limited sale of organic fertlisers ~ paid up capital of
inthe PRC RMB10,500,000
THRENRREERAR T8 BRAEAY RPESEREE AR RRA - - 832%  832%  88.2%  832%
Jiangsu Azureblue The PRC, limited BRI AR100,000,00070
Technology fiability company Manufacturing and sale Registered and
Development Gompany Limited of compound paid up capital of
fertisers in the PRC RMB100,000,000
&R IARAR hE - BRAEAR REEETRA R RRA - - 3% 913%  918%  913%
Jiangsu Longteng Petrochemical - The PRO, imited! NI RARRHE AR 14,160,000
Limited fiability company Processing, exploration Registered and
(Hsk2) and sales of paid up capital of
(note 2) serpenting in the PRC RMB14,160,000
BEEERMRERAR e ERAEAR RPEERSNRR.  AMRARRA - - 3% 913%  918%  913%
(Mr2) The PR, limited ERERY AR1,300,0007
(note 2) fiability company Logistics in the PRC Registered and
paid up capital of
RMB1,300,000
EZBEREHERAA hE - BRAEAR RPESEREE R REERA - - 915% - 915% =
The PR, limited BBERSEE 3,000,007
fiability company Manufacturing and Registered and
sale of organic paid up capital of
fertilisers and caloium RMB3,000,000
magnesium fertisers
inthe PRC
HREERRAA ABRAES REAREER NRERR 100%  100% - - 100%  100%
New Bright Group Limited BRERAA Investment holding BRART0ET
British Virgin Islands, in Hong Kong 20 ordinary shares
limited fiabifty company of US§1.00 each
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23. AMIBATIZIREREWKE AT 23. Investments in and Amounts Due from

128

FE ()

(a) RMBARZRE (H)

BRERERER
ERAA
Partners Capital
Group Limited
(Ht2)
(note 2)

BRERERERAR
Partners Capital
International Limited
(MzE2)
(note 2)

BAEFERAA
Partners Capital
Securities Limited
(zE2)
(note 2)

Partners Capital
(Singapore) Pte.
Limited
(Hi¥2)

(note 2)

GrEEER(FR)
ERAH
(IFxEEl)

Sunshine Asset
Management (HK)
Limited (Sunshine Asset’)
(zE2)
(note 2)

BrEReRER
ERAR
([Bx@Al

Sunshing Partners
Financial Holdings
Limited
(*Sunshine Partners”)
(Hzt2)

(note 2)

BREBARAT

Win Profit Holdings Limited
(Hi¥2)
(note 2)

World Star Group Limited

(MzE2)
(note 2)

AL
REARRER
Place of
incorporation
and kind of
legal entity

&% ARAEAT
Hong Kong, limited
fiability company

&E BRREAA
Hong Kong, limited
fiability company

&% HREEAR
Hong Kong, limited
liabilty company

g - BRAEAT
Singapore, limited
fiability company

&h BRRLAA
Hong Kong, limited
liabiity company

ABRAHS
BREAAR

British Virgin Islands,
fimited fiabilty
company

&% HREEAR
Hong Kong, limited
liabilty company

ZERAES.
EREAAR

Brttish Virgin Islands,
fimited fiabifty company

ITER
NEELY
Principal
activities and
place of
operation

REBREER
Investment holding
inHong Kong

AR ANARERE
RHER

Dedling in securities and
provision of advisory
services on corporate
finance

55
Dealing in securties

HRRRERRESR

Provision of advisory
services on
corporate finance

RERBERR
BEERRE

Provision of investment
advisory and asset
management services

Investment holding
in Hong Kong

wheE
Club membership
holaing

Investment holding
in Hong Kong

(Continued)

ERTRG/
BREMRAZHE
Particulars of
issued share/
paid up
registered capital

9,163 820 E B
EREE10ET

9,163,820 ordinary
shares of HK$1,00
each

12,000,000 £
SREE1.0HT

12,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1.00
each

19,100,000k &%
SHREE1.0%T

19,100,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1.00
each

1160000 & BRER
A 1007 IR

1,150,000 ordinary
shares of SGD1.00
each

28,000,000
SHREE1.0%T

28,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1.00
each

106RERREREE
100%7

106 ordinary shares of
US$1.00 each

1RERR
SREE1.0%T

1 ordlnary share of
HK$1.00 each

1,025,741 REBR
SHEE10ET

1,025,741 ordinary
shares of US$1.00
each

Subsidiaries (Continued)
(a) Investments in Subsidiaries

AOFAREHERRL RS

Proportion ownership
interest holding
by the Company

E&

Directly

2011

2010

33
Indirectly
2011 2010
5% 5%
5% 5%
67.57%  6757%
38.25%  38.20%
5% 5%

100% 100%

5% 5%

5% 5%

FRNRRRILA

Proportion of
voting power held

5%

5%

67.57%

50%

5%

100%

5%

5%

75%

75%

67.57%

50%

75%

100%

5%

75%
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23. AHIBARIZREREWKE AT 23. Investments in and Amounts Due from

IE (&) Subsidiaries (Continued)
(a) RHBATIZKRE (&) (a) Investments in Subsidiaries
(Continued)
FisE notes:
(1) RIBEHR BEMNBARBEMEH (1) None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities issued
T A AREE 2 EBES PSR outstanding at the end of the reporting period except for
B 1T A& B % A100%#E &= 2 China Magnesium which has issued HK$84,000,000 of
84,000,000 7 7T 2 AT AR FE 2 A BR S © convertible bonds, in which the Group has 100%
M AR E S 2012412 A 31 B EI A interest. Should the convertible bonds be converted into
EEERSRNG - AIAEERFEEF shares upon maturity on 31 December 2012, the Group
SEERAER 2 78.8% ° would hold 78.8% equity interest in China Magnesium.
@ REZE2010F12A31BILFEEAZ (2)  Subsidiaries were acquired during the year ended 31
FRA December 2010.

(b) EWHIEBQRIFIE (b) Amounts Due from Subsidiaries
FEWFT B AR FRIEREER £ 2WIR The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-
ZsRUg[E o interest bearing and recoverable on demand.

24. FEEIHKRE 24. Held-to-maturity Investment

RAF]
The Group The Company

2011 2010 2011 2010
TR TAT THET TAT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000  HK$'000

REDEIRE Held-to-maturity investment 10,000 — - =
REFZEEDNHIBLERETE—BAR QTR The Group’s held-to-maturity investment represents debt
T2 ERES  REF28EHNTEE  FIE securities that are issued by a limited company in Hong Kong,
BELELN BR2013FE6 158 ER ° and carries fixed interest at 28% per annum payable half-
RREERE - RIBAEMABISRIE - yearly, and will mature on 15 June 2013. None of these assets

has been past due or impaired at the end of the reporting
period.
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25, 78 25. Inventories

2011 2010
F#ET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
R Raw materials 47,658 24,071
TR Work in progress 181 165
B Finished goods 27,028 17,248
74,867 41,484

26. ESRHMEWRFIE BARE 26. Trade and Other Receivables,

kg Prepayments and Deposits

KEH PN
The Group The Company

2011 2010 2011 2010
TR TAT TR TAT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000  HK$'000

B E 5708 Trade receivables 114,112 178,764 - —

RAREAE Allowance for doubtful debts (2,105) — - —

112,007 178,764 - =

R (iRt a) Bills receivable (note a) 19,860 60,006 - —

FENRIERIZE Prepayments and deposits 31,723 9,973 565 299

Hith fEU K08 (K3 b)  Other receivables (note b) 51,059 17,130 - =
TEHURBI T4 ~ 123%  Deposits placed with financial

institutions a1 2,870 - —

214,690 268,743 565 299

BT notes:

(@  P2011412H318 & I = # 19,860,000 (@  Asat 31 December 2011, bills receivable of HK$19,860,000
7 78 (2010 4F : 60,006,000 7T ) #8 1A #R & Hi (2010: HK$60,006,000) will be matured within six months
KRB A (20104 : XER) NEIH - FrEfE (2010: six months) after the end of the reporting period. All the
WEBHIAARKEFHE - bills receivable are denominated in RMB.

(o) M2011F12H31H @ K ERFIEXZEIE ()  Asat 31 December 2011, other receivables mainly comprised
Fh B A BT Ui B 385 (B A 4D 4% 8,180,000 7 7T K e of value-added tax recoverable in the PRC of approximately
W ER7TF 8.4 5,684,000 % IT © HK$8,180,000 and bank interest receivables of approximately

HK$5,684,000.

130



2011 £FH§
ANNUAL REPORT 2011

B ISR AL

Notes to the Financial Statements
HE2011FE12 A1 BHILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

26. EF R HMEBEWIE - BNARKIE 26. Trade and Other Receivables,
Rig$ (48) Prepayments and Deposits (Continued)
B 5 REAEWIE - FBAFHIERIEZS AT Trade and other receivables, prepayments and deposits were
BHEHE denominated in the following currencies:

rEE PN
The Group The Company

2011 2010 2011 2010
TR TAT TR TAET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000

AR RMB 177,650 136,771 - —
BT HK$ 37,040 131,642 565 299
Hith Others - 330 = _
214,690 268,743 565 299
R2011F12 31 B » AEBEWE 5HRIER As at 31 December 2011, the ageing analysis of the trade
RO (HXERE2%) T : receivables of the Group presented based on the invoice date

was as follows:

2011 2010
FET BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
30U Within 30 days 84,156 150,808
31260H 31 to 60 days 18,510 23,485
612 90H 61 to 90 days 3,193 1,781
BB 0 H Over 90 days 8,253 2,690
114,112 178,764

AEERTESIRFZEEH—MZIE180H The Group allows a credit period normally up to 180 days

(20104 : 2% 180H) ° (2010: up to 180 days) to its trade customers.
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26. E5 R EMEWRE - BAKE
K& (&)
RESIENVAEEIEE e e P E et
REHHTRBABIRS - E@EERRENE
5 REKHE T B— R A E A R AT 5 0%
MZERFHEM - AN EHERTREALE)
RESBDARBAUTE2KE - BEBES
% EEERALESERXSHEBELRAE
Bt - AEEBE RS AR A ETERR -

BHERBEZBESEREGRERESTOT

26. Trade and Other Receivables,
Prepayments and Deposits (Continued)
Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default. Trade receivables that were past due
but not impaired related to a number of customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balance are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Ageing analysis of trade receivables which are past due but

not impaired:
R BHREREE
BRRE 90HL\R 91Z180H 181Z365H
Neither past

due nor Past due but not impaired
Total impaired <90 days 91-180 days 181-365 days
Tz TET TR TR Tz
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
20115 2011 112,007 105,780 - 5,334 893
20104 2010 178,764 176,074 — 1,224 1,466

RIEBE2EE Movement in the allowance for doubtful

R A1H
T E S B RERREEE

on trade receivables

As at 1 January
Impairment losses recognised

debts

2011 2010
THET

HK$'000

FTExT
HK$’000

2,105 =

®12 A31H

As at 31 December

2,105 —

REEE 2 RUGRIARNA W EZER - AEH
ZEHEARLEERHEEEREDRERLE
R BREFRENCEEERR LIRS
B aNEPEMEAABERE  HEER
BEETEEER -
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In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the
Group considers any change in credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
ended of the reporting period. The concentration of credit risk
is limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated.
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26. ES R HMEWRKIE - ENARKIE
k&€ (@)
TR (B & 5 FE W R E 1Y BRI

26. Trade and Other Receivables,
Prepayments and Deposits (Continued)
Age of impaired trade receivables

2011 2010
FHET FATT
HK$’000 HK$’000

#Ef Overdue by:
30HA Within 30 days 20 —
31260H 31 to 60 days 19 —
61290 H 61 to 90 days 40 —
912180 H 91 to 180 days 54 —
#8180 H Over 180 days 1,972 —
“Et Total 2,105 —

27. HIEEERE

27. Investments Held for Trading

rEHE PN
The Group The Company

2011 2010 2011 2010
TR T TR T

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

EB 2z FmRAES - Listed equity securities in
BARE Hong Kong, at fair value 21,478 12,759 3,540 4,782
Bz FRRARRES - Listed equity securities in the PRC,

BARE at fair value

8,947 7,154 - —

30,425 19,913 3,540 4,782

MR2011F12A31 H  AEBZHEESKE
BIEHRE A EERA® A E17,938,000% T
(20104 : 7,977,000/ 7C) Z Lt IR AE S o

RABNH2EMSABEAEEE °

Included in investments held for trading is an amount of
HK$17,938,000 (2010: HK$7,977,000) listed equity securities,
held by Sunshine Asset as at 31 December 2011.

Fair values are determined with reference to quoted market
bid price.
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28. RITEREREREREESEH 28. Deposits with Banks and Cash and Cash

R2011EFE12A31H @ BIfRBBE=@AED
H—5 2 $R177F5X330,172,00075 7T (2010 4F :
446,744,000 7T) 2 B EFFE B25EE 4.4
[E (20104 : 1.65/B £ 3.25[F ) » iR 1717 7K A
ARMETE -

SRITIER4T 78,118,000/ 7T (20104 : 39,059,000

AL EEHER - UG —HEE - EHEAR
TR INME N HRRAE B ERER o

RBEMR RELERRLSEARBREATE

Equivalents

As at 31 December 2011, the fixed interest rate on deposits
with banks of HK$330,172,000 (2010: HK$446,744,000),
with maturity over three months but less than one year, was
ranging from 2.5% to 4.4% (2010: 1.65% to 3.25%) per
annum. The deposits with banks were denominated in RMB.

Deposits with banks of amounting to approximately
HK$78,118,000 (2010: HK$39,059,000) have been pledged
to secure a borrowing. The pledged bank deposits will be
released upon the settlement of relevant borrowing.

At the end of the reporting period, cash and cash equivalents

H: comprise of the followings:
AEE b NE
The Group The Company

2011 2010 2011 2010

FER T FERT FHT

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

TEHRSRIT IR Short-term bank deposits 40,261 10,862 12,230 —
iR17IR4 R FFEIH4E  Cash at bank and on hand 200,478 190,079 450 1,089
240,739 200,941 12,680 1,089

RIREHR - BHRTHERZERFEA1.49
[E (20104 : 1.358) : ZEHFRFHEIHAR
DR =18 (20104 : =f@A) -

At the end of the reporting period, the effective interest rate on
short-term bank deposits was 1.49% (2010: 1.35%); these
deposits have an average maturity of less than three months
(2010: three months).

ReRERRSEHRATERE Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following
currencies:

AEE PN
The Group

The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
FET THx FET BT

HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000

AR RMB 176,414 126,963 1 3
BT HKS$ 57,068 68,157 6,914 1,049
At Others 7,257 5,821 5,765 37

240,739 200,941 12,680 1,089

BUARBHEZRENERRSIER EL S
BAX T BEBUNEEAINEE SIFTARR

The remittance of cash and cash equivalents denominated in
RMB out of the PRC is subject to the foreign exchange control
restrictions imposed by the government of the PRC.
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29. ES R HMENKIE

29. Trade and Other Payables

rEE PN
The Group

The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
THERT T THET FHT

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

EAE 5 F0E Trade payables 72,066 137,131 - —
FEETFRIE K Accruals and other payables 87,461 217,364 1,166 3,057

H fth fE T FRIR
159,527 354,495 1,166 3,057

MR2011F12A31H  AEEENEZESHFHIEZ
BRIROIT RBEZEHH2H7) T

As at 31 December 2011, the ageing analysis of trade
payables of the Group presented based on the invoice date
was as follows:

2011 2010

FERx THETT

HK$’000 HK$'000

30 HIAA Within 30 days 62,786 132,988
31£60H 31 to 60 days 2,866 849
61290 H 61 to 90 days 3,014 139
#3890 H Over 90 days 3,400 3,155
72,066 137,131

REERZFHEEEAE0H (20104 : 90
A) AEBEREVERBREERE © R
FrEENZREREEHRRER -

T EIERN T EE N X E S Mot AL
" IE - 9 Bl % A&575,0008 JT(20104F ¢
440,0005% 7T ) K% 310,000 7T (20104 : 341,000
BIT) °

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days
(2010: 90 days). The Group has financial risk management
policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled within
the credit timeframe.

Included above are payables to directors, Mr. Chi Wen Fu and
Mr. Shum Sai Chit, amounted to approximately HK$575,000
(2010: HK$440,000) and HK$310,000 (2010: HK$341,000)
respectively.
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30. BERIIFEE

30. Provision for Over-Extraction Penalty

2011 2010

HEEERAER BRE F

SRR E SR

Provision for Provision for

over- over-

extraction extraction

penalty penalty

THET FHIT

HK$’000 HK$'000

m1A18 As at 1 January 55,719 —

W RE B B A A Acquisition of subsidiaries - 55,719
4 [0] 38 S RS s B Reversal of provision for over-extraction

penalty (56,753) —

bE H Exchange alignment 1,034 —

W12 A31H As at 31 December - 55,719

ZEBRBRRBEFRIRESE  FREAFE
AEBE N BIRREE 8188 H R F AR
FEH) R FRERE ©

RERN - AEEE 8/1é4A B+ ERIPESHE
ERTERE -
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The provision represents over-extraction penalty in relation to
the actual mining production volume of the Group exceeded
the maximum mining production capacity as stipulated in its
mining license in prior years.

During the year, the Group had obtained an approval from the
Jiangsu Province Department of Land and Resources for
clearance of the penalty.
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31. BE 31. Borrowings
2011 2010
TR TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE: Borrowings:
—FERA Within one year 141,590 36,708
—FUAEETBARF More than one year but not exceeding
(MI3EDb) five years (note b) 142,451 135,857
284,041 172,565
o BEREBEZHIE LLess: Amounts shown under current liabilities (141,590) (36,708)
142,451 135,857
BE Borrowings:
BHER (FfzEa) Secured (note a) 235,217 172,565
AR (FtsEc) Unsecured (note ¢) 48,824 —
284,041 172,565
i notes:
@ R2011E12 8318 - FITEEHDRIL (@)  Asof 31 December 2011, the borrowings were secured
78,534,000 7T & 137,126,00035 7T.(2010 by property, plant and equipment and land use rights of
4 : #97,707,0005 7T ) 94,089,000 5 7T) the Group amounting to approximately HK$78,534,000
TAREEYE  RE R RE N s R and HK$137,126,000 (2010: approximately
VESEHR o HK$7,707,000 and HK$94,089,000) respectively.
MNo011E12 8318 2 BEEF = 57.65 The effective interest rate at 31 December 2011 was
B (20104 : 6.12[&8) ° 7.65% (2010: 6.12%).
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MsE : (&)

()

2006511 A - AEEEBERSFAR]
((BEBREmmAR ]I L ERLHE - BRI
ZEFRLZE BREemARMARAE
T B A 7% A R # 120,000,000 7T
(49146,472,000870) 2ER » 2 BE3IE
FF E538F B - WAM2013F 11
AE—HREE BEERSBRARKRLEZ
ZERA TS IBERR : ) AQEE
Bz EEER: K[ BRERRQ A
244,578,000 A% & 2 (B Bt 1E Ak 0 7 48
(IBRHOFHEDIELFAE  AEEBEKEE
Al ([EE] - BIERRE)ES) - 1R
BZER MR - AKBEZED RN 2010F
128318 201112 A31H }&2012
F12 A1 BERBE SR ARFEBRARE
32,000,000 7T ( #739,059,000/8 7t ) * A
R # 64,000,000 7T (#778,118,000 7% 7T )
& A R # 88,000,000 7T ( #7107,413,000
PEIL) ZIRITIFRR o O - RARIEER
ERBRERSONELE(BRBERTEY
90% 125 ) MBIR & M A R A HEIFT AR
AIZHREFRE - ARG RANEEET
ETRY  BEEBRE) ERBHEE
T2 & TR -

MR2011FE12A318  EREEREHHA
7 7 A #78,118,000/% 7T (20104 :
39,059,0007T) * AER—TEE K -

BEEUAARESE  IAMEULEER
FARNEE - R2011FE12A831B 2 E
BEFI= 5 6.87 2 (20104 : 6.89)E) °

R2011FE12 A31 H » #948,824,00078
7T (AR#40,000,0007T) Z fEE AEK
e RBEFHZ  BLTmALEBE
BEBRARZHBHEE(EED @ 1§
20124 6 A 30 B8z AT T — [+
BIRIT - EREAEENER BEEXN
AR BARFASEERITE - PER
& AAER o

notes: (Continued)

®)

The Group entered into a loan arrangement with
International Finance Corporation (‘IFC”) in November
2006. Pursuant to the loan arrangement, IFC had
granted a loan of RMB120,000,000 (approximately
HK$146,472,000) to certain subsidiaries of the
Company. The loan bears interest at 5.38% per annum
and is due for repayment in one installment in November
2018. The loan granted by IFC was secured by (i)
corporate guarantee given by the Company; and (i)
pledges of 244,578,000 shares in the Company, as
adjusted for the effect of the share subdivision (“Share
Subdivision”), owned by Alpha Sino International Limited
(“Alpha Sino”), the controlling shareholder. Pursuant to
the loan agreement, the Group is required to place bank
deposits of RMB32,000,000 (approximately
HK$39,059,000), RMB64,000,000 (approximately
HK$78,118,000) and RMB88,000,000 (approximately
HK$107,413,000) to IFC as at 31 December 2010, 31
December 2011 and 31 December 2012, respectively.
In addition, Mr. Chi Wen Fu, a director and controlling
shareholder of the Company (through his 90% interest
in Alpha Sino), has given an undertaking to IFC to
maintain a minimum level of shareholding in the
Company. The Company and the Group are complied
with certain covenants, including, among other things,
certain financial covenants, under the loan arrangement.

As at 31 December 2011, there were approximately
HK$78,118,000 (2010: HK$39,059,000) bank deposits
placed to IFC for securing the loan.

The borrowings are denominated in RMB, and have a
maturity of more than 2 and less than 5 years. The
effective interest rate at 31 December 2011 was 6.87%
(2010: 6.89%).

As at 31 December 2011, the borrowings of
approximately HK$48,824,000 (RMB40,000,000) were
unsecured. According to the loan agreement, certain
assets (“Assets”) of Baishan City Tianan Magnesium
Resources Company Limited will be pledged to a bank
in PRC on or before 30 June 2012 to secure the
relevant borrowings. Details of the Assets are subject to
further negotiation between the Group and the bank.
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31. BE (&) 31. Borrowings (Continued)
AEEEEZREERAABERAT The carrying amount and fair value of the Group’s borrowings
are as follows:

SREE DRE

Carrying amount Fair value

2011 2010 2011 2010
TR TAT TR TAT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000

e Borrowings 284,041 172,565 283,492 178,214
32. ELEHE 32. Deferred Taxation
FERNREGEE AR R IER 2 EEF AR The components of deferred tax balances recognised in the
AR ER D R BB AT consolidated statement of financial position and the

movements during the year are as follows:

EEFHIEE RS Deferred Tax Liabilities
B EE R TihERE nE - BERRE 5t
Property, plant
Intangible assets Mining rights Land use rights and equipment Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2011
TET TR AL TR TAL TR ’ TER TARL
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
MA1A Asat 1 January 204 - 110,690 - 11,170 3,698 1,295 - 129,359 3,698
WEMBAR Acquisition of subsidiaries - 207 - 110,690 - 13,598 - 1,29 - 125,790
SAGRNER Credited to the consolidated
income statement (10) B (2131) - (378) (76) (42) - (2,561) 9
Eja% Exchange alignment - - 3,710 - 455 (50) 43 - 4,208 (50)
#12A318 Asat 31 December 194 204 112,269 110,690 17,247 17,170 1,296 129 131,006 129,359
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32. JEEBIIE (&) 32. Deferred Taxation (Continued)
ELEBBEEE Deferred Tax Assets
IEBIEITE HEER Fo
Accelerated tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
FHT TEr Faxr  TEr  FEn TEn
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
®1A1H As at 1 January 20 — 537 — 557 —
AR B 8 A A Acquisition of subsidiaries - 20 - 764 - 784
Bird EmTR (Debited)/Credited to the
(BR),FEA consolidated income
statement (2) — 37 (227) 35 (227)
®12A31H As at 31 December 18 20 574 537 592 557
33. REENRE 33. Long Term Payables
REENFIBERBERBEENR TRE B Long-term payables were the remaining consideration for the
BRI HIFE21 #2588 o FH20084F £20124F &-4F acquisition of mining rights as disclosed in Note 21. The
JERT B S F IR & 4 AR 720,000 7T (49 payable would be settled by cash of approximately
879,000 787t ) &5 1+ © RMB720,000 (approximately HK$879,000) in each year from
2008 to 2012.
2011 2010
F#ET FHIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RIERAE - Deferred considerations:
— EERIR—FR — On demand or within one year 816 789
— —FLA BT EBBRE — More than one year but not exceeding
two years - 732
B (BiE%E Total deferred considerations 816 1,521
B —F AR BRI RIE Less: Amount due within one year shown
e UENEEIE S under current liabilities (included in
(FrAE A FIE) other payables) (816) (789)
REAFES FIE Long-term payables - 732
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34. ®RA&

EE
M20106F1 A1 8 -
2010412 A318 »
20111 A1 K
2011412 318 :

34. Share Capital

Authorised:
As at 1 January 2010, 31 December
2010, 1 January 2011 and
31 December 2011:

2011 FF3§

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

BROBE

Number of

shares

T
000

&S
Share
capital
TR
HK$'000

SFHREE0.02/8 T2 L ik Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each 5,000,000 100,000
ERITRAR Issued and fully paid:
R2010F1 A1 H As at 1 January 2010 2,253,070 45,061
e RSB 228 Effect on change in
functional currencies = 9,935

RERHD Consideration shares @) 325,833 6,517
A2010F12H31H * As at 31 December 2010,

20115118 K 1 January 2011 and

20114F12H31H 31 December 2011 2,578,903 61,513

i

(@)

HE2010FE12A31BIEEE B A T
325,833,333 % & A% I {8 0.02 7% T &) 2 @ A%
EARERD

0] RARGIN EE W - WEBXERR
100% EETRA PREKELD
80,975,000/ 7T ° X {& A 60,975,000
7 T B #5 3577 225,833,333 Ik F R HE B
0.27 BTTHF IR M 214 - EEFBHER
AAFR 20106 B 18 HHI A ©

(ii) ARAAEMEE®WZE Y EGd
Strategy A1 100% B B 1T A » 4 k42
K B 49371,500,0007% T > KX & F
29,500,000 75 7t B #& % 77 100,000,000
% £ % T 181, 0.295 7 7T Y 57 A AD 2 A+ -
BZHBHNRARARMKR2010F9 A 25
B o

notes:

During the year ended 31 December 2010, a total of
325,833,333 ordinary shares of HK$0.02 were issued as
consideration shares as follow:

U

(i)

The Company entered into a sales and purchase
agreement to acquire 100% of the issued share capital
of Sunshine Partners for a total consideration of
approximately HK$80,975,000. HK$60,975,000 of the
consideration was settled by issue of 225,833,333 new
shares at HK$0.27 per share. For further details, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 18 June
2010.

The Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to acquire 100% of the issued share capital
of Gold Strategy for a total consideration of
approximately HK$371,500,000. HK$29,500,000 of
the consideration was settled by issue of 100,000,000
new shares at HK$0.295 per share. For further details,
please refer to the Company’s circular dated 25
September 2010.
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35. f#E
REE
AEMARFERBEFE HELERED
ERGAESEHRET -

35. Reserves
The Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

KATE] The Company
BREE
e RiEE e B REEA fam
Capital
Share Share  redemption  Translation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total
THT TAL FHL T TAL FHL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2010E1 A18 Asat 1 January 2010 45,061 564,961 2,44 91,353 61,397 765,213
FRER Loss for the year - - - - (35,215) (35.215)
EREMZERA Other comprehensive income for the year = = = 21287 = 21,287
FRZERAN/ (BE) 28 Total comprehensive income/{loss)
for the year - - - 21,287 (35.215) (13928)
WEEHBAR Acquisition of subsidlaries 6,517 83,958 - - - 90475
VIEA-Ly oWk Effect on change in functional currencies 9935 92,006 228 (112,640) 10471 -
RRBHEZRE Diidend recognised as distribution - - - - (10,138) (10,138)
M2010512A318 As at 31 December 2010
R201F1818 and 1 January 2011 61,513 740,925 2,669 — 26,515 831,622
FRER Loss for the year - - - - (9,804) (9,804
FREMZERA Other comprenensive income
for the year - - - - - -
FRREEBES Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - - - (9,804) (9,804)
R2011512831H As at 31 December 2011 61,513 740,925 2,669 - 16,711 821,818

36. A BHEEAELEFEANEE
BZE2011F12 A31 BHIEFE » KAREEARE

15 5184973 9,804,000 /87T (20104 + 35,215,000
BIT) ERARAIFBRREE -
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36. Loss for the Year Attributable to Owners
of the Company
The loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2011 which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$9,804,000 (2010: HK$35,215,000).
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37. BIRE 37. Share Options

R2008F 12 A3 H + AR A J& 3 #E 4 g I 4
FTEI([FZEHE1]) - BRIBZETE - NARAIHEE
BRETASEZESNES A5EREMK
BHRN DHEE - A O HER - R HE
BeREBPREBEH(EEKS2 A
E]) - URBAARIRG -

BRENZESIENBETHNRE  TH=X
Hth 77 E RO IR R MR R - HEBRE R &
R 7R B R At 81 B0 (E (o] EAR GRS B R AR A —
B o

REETEERATREE () RONBERE
1R 2 A HIR B X g B MERMAIE R
miE () RHRERBRERE A YR ER
ZERBIMEARERMINETRZFH
B+ R (i) et 2 FME o ANE BN ML TE St
BENR B OB EARE -

BREENAER2REQBRERLANE
HIE 2 ATE IR AR B ARSI AT -

On 3 December 2008, a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
was approved by the shareholders of the Company. Under
the Scheme, the Company may grant options to the directors
or employees of the Group, consultant or adviser, distributor,
contractor, supplier, service provider, agent, customer and
business partner of the Group (the “Eligible Participant”) to
subscribe for shares in the Company.

Options may be granted on such terms and conditions in
relation to their vesting, exercise or otherwise as the directors
may determine in its absolute discretion, provided that such
terms and conditions shall not be inconsistent with any other
terms conditions of the Scheme.

The subscription price is not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares on Main Boards stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of the
option; (i) the average prices of the shares on Main Board as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer of the
option; and (i) the nominal value of the shares. The Group has
no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the
options in cash.

The share options are exercisable only if the Eligible

Participants remain in the service of the Group from the grant
date of the share options up to the designated exercise date.
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37. BRRE(E)

WIARTTERB AR B R EARR I T O T(EE

ZEEIT

37. Share Options (Continued)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and
their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

2011

®RET
AEZ
BRF
IEE
Average
exercise
price in
HKS$ per
share

Number
of Share
Options
T4
’000

2010

RETT
AR
B
1TEE

Average

exercise
price in
HKS$ per
share

R R
28

Number
of Share
Options

Tt

®1A1H8 As at 1 January - - — =
2176 Exercised = = — _
EFEL Granted 0.5 220,500 — -
BR &K Lapsed - - — =
m12 4318 As at 31 December 0.5 220,500 — —

R2011F 128308 » AEBERAEERSE T
Z = LR 8 1% H 220,500,000 7 8 A% # ([ 88 A
) o IRIRFEAIE 53K - BRAEARERTIZT

On 30 December 2011, the Group had granted 220,500,000
share options (the “Share Options”) to certain directors and
employees of the Group. In accordance with the terms of the

S EATE : Share Options, the Share Options are exercisable in the
following manner:
i) mEE TEBAZLEARES H (i) in respect of the Share Options granted to certain

55,000,000 A% A% 10 = B A% #E ([ A %8 BE IR grantees to subscribe for a total of 55,000,000 Shares
EDmME  BRESREBHZE20144F (“Type A Share Options”), the Share Options are valid
1031 BIEBRK - AFRBEIRIER TR from the Date of Grant until 31 October 2014. The Type

i - A Share Options are exercisable to subscribe for:

a maximum of 22,000,000 Shares within the
period between 1 November 2012 to 31 October
2013 (both dates inclusive); and

e £ %22,000000R &M - REAB O
2012411 A1BE2013%F10A31H
IE(BEEEMA) &

e 5% 33,000,000 i 2 5 M kXX e amaximum of 33,000,000 Shares plus aggregate

BERATECANRE  REPA

201311 A1BE2014610A31H

IE(BEEEMA)

balance not yet exercised in paragraph above
within the period between 1 November 2013 to
31 October 2014 (both dates inclusive);
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37. Bk (&)

(i)

(iii)

FREMEABARLATIRBES H
32,000,000 % i 17 2 & A # ([ B #A 8 Ak
EDmE  BREGERLEBHZE2015F
10 A31 HIEB - BEERERI1TER

& %8,000,000/% f% 15 © & H B
201211 A1 H&£2013F10H31H
IF(BEEEMA)

£ % 12,000,000 % B 17 55 0 £ XX
BREERTE2ARE  REB
2013411 A1 HZE2014510A31H
H(BEERMA) &

£x % 12,000,000 &% B 13 5 10 5 0
FHRRITEZRAE RHBE
2014411 B1HZ20159410A31H
IH(PEEREMA)

FREMEREARDAIRBEAS &
133,500,000 A& A% 17 2 & B ([ C ¥R BB AR
EDME  BREGREBHE2017F
12 A80H Ik A & ° ¥ K& 127,500,000 A%
itz CHERERRIE R 1T 3R -

& % 25,500,000 & B 17 - A H A
201211 A1 H&2013F10H31H
IF(BEEEMA) :

£ % 25,500,000 f% B 17 55 0 £ X
BREERTE2ARE  REE
2013411 A1 HZE201410A31H
IH(BEERMA) :

£ % 25,500,000 1% f& 15 % 10 £ X
RIBRMARITRZ AT REE
2014511 B1HBZ2015410A31H
IH(PEEEMA)

2011 FF3§
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37. Share Options (Continued)

(i

)

in respect of the Share Options granted to other
grantees to subscribe for a total of 32,000,000 Shares
(“Type B Share Options”), the Share Options are valid
from the Date of Grant until 31 October 2015. The Type
B Share Options are exercisable to subscribe for:

° a maximum of 8,000,000 Shares within the period
between 1 November 2012 to 31 October 2013
(both dates inclusive);

o a maximum of 12,000,000 Shares plus aggregate
balance not yet exercised in paragraph above
within the period between 1 November 2013 to
31 October 2014 (both dates inclusive); and

° a maximum of 12,000,000 Shares plus aggregate
balance not yet exercised in paragraph above
within the period between 1 November 2014 to
31 October 2015 (both dates inclusive);

in respect of the Share Options granted to other
grantees to subscribe for a total of 133,500,000 Shares
(“Type C Share Options”), the Share Options are valid
from the Date of Grant until 30 December 2017. The
Type C Share Options in respect of 127,500,000
Shares are exercisable to subscribe for:

o a maximum of 25,500,000 Shares within the
period between 1 November 2012 to 31 October
2013 (both dates inclusive);

° a maximum of 25,500,000 Shares plus aggregate
balance not yet exercised in paragraph above
within the period between 1 November 2013 to
31 October 2014 (both dates inclusive);

o a maximum of 25,500,000 Shares plus aggregate
balance not yet exercised in paragraph above
within the period between 1 November 2014 to
31 October 2015 (both dates inclusive);
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37. Bix#E (&)

146

(i)

(iv)

(##)

e B %25500,000 8% B EX
REMARITE 2 BHRTE REB
2015611 1B E2016%F10A31H
IF(PREEEMA) : &

e & %25500,000 8 B 17 55 0 £ XX
RERARITEZBSHE RHA
2016411 S1HE2017412830R
(BEFEREMA) &

% K #F 6,000,000 % i {7 2 C 4B E& A% 4
AR A BE2016F11 A1 H 220174
12A30HIE(BEEEMBE)ITF -

37. Share Options (Continued)

(i)

)

(continued)

° a maximum of 25,500,000 Shares plus aggregate
balance not yet exercised in paragraph above
within the period between 1 November 2015 to
31 October 2016 (both dates inclusive); and

° a maximum of 25,500,000 Shares plus aggregate
balance not yet exercised in paragraph above
within the period between 1 November 2016 to
30 December 2017 (both dates inclusive); and

the Type C Share Options in respect of the remaining
6,000,000 Shares are exercisable within the period
between 1 November 2016 to 30 December 2017 (both
dates inclusive).
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37. BIRE (&)
RMEHR - MARTEEREEUATERH
B - (TR EA AT 0B o

37. Share Options (Continued)
Share options outstanding at the end of the reporting period
have the following expiry date, exercise period and exercise

prices.
BRITEE
(#&J7T) ERERE
Exercise
prices HK$ Number of
per share Share Options

2011 2010

T8 TR

’000 '000

B 2014410 A 31 H B20124 11 A1 BER 0.5 55,000 —
201410 A 31 H
Type A 31 October 2014 From 1 November 2012
to 31 October 2014

8 2015410 A 31 H B2012% 11 A1 HER 0.5 32,000 —
2015410 A 31 H
Type B 31 October 2015 From 1 November 2012
to 31 October 2015

AEE 2017412 A30 H H2012F11 A1 BEE 0.5 127,500 —
201712 B30 H
Type C 30 December 2017 From 1 November 2012
to 30 December 2017

2017412 A30H B2016411 A1 HiER 0.5 6,000 —
2017412 A30H
30 December 2017 From 1 November 2016
to 30 December 2017

- 220,500 —

HZE2011F12 31 BILEE - BHAOBARME The fair value of options granted during the year ended 31

WAREERAEAR — FRITHEEEER
EE - 443,897,000 7T - ) A& AEER
WEZHERZARELAMREC217HE T
(ERBRDOFOTEELRAE)  Ll1TE
B AH KRB MD R IZFERE920%ZE
66.37% - FE R A F0.33% £ 1.08% * 4
1E6F TR BREF B R 1.43% K B X © 1%
TRERERMAEEREMTEARE - TR
¥ m2006F 7 A31H £2011F 12 A31H &
BRRENS ST ESL -

December 2011 determined using the Black-Scholes
valuation model was approximately HK$3,897,000. The
significant inputs into the model were share price of
HK$0.217, at the grant date and adjusted for the effect of the
share subdivision, exercise price shown above, standard
deviation of expected share price return of 39.20% to 66.37%,
annual risk-free interest rate of 0.33% to 1.08%, expected life
of options of approximately 1 to 6 years and dividend payout
ratio of 1.43%. The volatility measured at the standard
deviation of expected share price returns is based on
statistical analysis of daily share prices from 31 July 2006 to
31 December 2011.
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37.

38.

148

BRAE (&)

B ZE2011F 12 A 31 B LLFE Hif 2 B IR &
RITEE - Bt - EARG BER 2 F3K785
MR EWE=FA °

HEMRB QA

M201141 A24 8 ARARIZEN B QA
LB LR ERARE— B E=5T
T EE W AR FHRE AR S,000,0007T
(FBE 79,480,000 7T ) tH & X Bl 5 57 #i i &
BERARRENBARSZHERE(EE)
BERAF(REEEREER) 2 2 BRAE
o MEEIHEN 2011 E1 A 24 A% °

37.

38.

Share Options (Continued)

The Share Options are not yet exercisable during the year
ended 31 December 2011. Thus, no share-based payments
are charged to the consolidated income statement.

Disposal of Subsidiaries

On 24 January 2011, Century Sunshine Ecological
Technology Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party to dispose of 100% equity interest
in American Excellent Pesticide Limited and its subsidiary,
Excellent Pesticide (Nanchang) Limited, which engaged in the
production of pesticides, for a consideration of RMB8,000,000
(equivalent to HK$9,480,000). The disposal was completed
on 24 January 2011.
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38. HEMNBE AR (&) 38. Disposal of Subsidiaries (Continued)
MEARNHE R FEENT ¢ The net assets of subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as
follows:

201151 H24H

24 January 2011
FHETT
HK$'000
&2 FEE Net assets disposed of:
M - BB NRE Property, plant and equipment 21
2 5 Rk E b FEGRIE Trade and other receivables 20
wE Inventories 4,020
ReRERBEIER Cash and cash equivalents 6,778
B 5 kA ENTRIA Trade and other payables 4,312)
FEASTETAS AR Income tax payables (2,286)
4,241
TE HH BB 5 Release of translation reserve 1,439
HEH B A Ak Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 3,800
BR(E Total consideration 9,480
AT HFAZA Satisfied by:
Re Cash 9,480
KREHEZFREM Net cash inflow from disposal:
RERE Cash consideration 9,480
FrtEZEe MNERIIREIER Cash and cash equivalents disposed 6,778)
2,702
M2011E1 A1 BEHEHEHRE - B For the period from 1 January 2011 to the date of disposal,
NEIRPBERELREEEN BB X - 2B the above subsidiaries were engaged in production and
ANE BB AT RIEIB 41,0008 T IR trading of pesticides in the PRC. The revenue contributed by
HZE2011E12A31 B It EE 2 AREFZF A the subsidiaries were approximately HK$Nil and loss of
R o approximately HK$1,000 has recognised in the Group’s profit

for the year ended 31 December 2011.
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39. &I 39. Commitments
(a) EBEAEIE (a) Capital Commitments

&S 3
The Group

2011 2010
FTEx TET
HK$’000 HK$'000

DETAEM ARG A B TSiREk  Capital expenditure in respect of the

B BRI acquisition of property, plant and
B MR EAT equipment contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated
financial statements 18,793 16,026
(b) KEHHNRIE (b) Operating Lease Commitments
AEEERAHEA The Group as Lessee
AREBREAHEHEYZHERA The Group leases various office premises and
BrRELERS  ZEME A AR warehouses under non-cancellable lease agreements.
e 2 BRRBLOENSBTR - The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and

renewal rights.

RIEHAR  KREERAQARBER At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the
1 S ] 5N £ A4 FR 49 7 T B HARS B 2R fE Company had commitments for future minimum lease
NHKERSEFAENT : payments under non-cancellable operating leases which

fall due as follows:

rEH b N
The Group The Company

2011 2010 2011 2010
TR TAT TR TAT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000

—ER Within one year 2,664 3,926 - —

E_EEFERF In the second to fifth years
(BEEEMRSE) inclusive 1,216 3,098 - =
fhichak:s Over five years 1,086 766 - —
4,966 7,790 - —
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39. &IE (&)
(b) RERNEE(E)

EEEEZHBEA
EERAMERRR-—FEREAM
Eo

RBEHRR  AREEHA T RRKE
BAONRERFETA -

39. Commitments (Continued)
(b) Operating Lease Commitments
(Continued)
The Group as Lessor
All of the properties held have committed tenants for the
next one year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum

lease payments:

rEE PN
The Group The Company

2011 2010 2011 2010

FET FAT FHET FAT

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

—FRA Within one year 4,900 2,903 - —
FE_FEERF In the second to fifth years

(BREEREMRE) inclusive 3,279 3,762 - —

BB AF Over five years = — - _

8,179 6,665 - —

40. BEALXR S
REAMBRESAREN  ERAEEDE
AT EEBEALRS -

(a) EEEEAEMS

40. Related-party Transactions
Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group entered into the following significant
related party transactions during the year.

(a) Key Management Compensation

2011 2010

F#ET FHT

HK$’000 HK$'000

= (fIFE14) Directors (Note 14) 1,996 2,298
HihEEEBASR : Other key management personnel:

e MEMSHES R Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits 792 534
2,788 2,832
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40. HEALRF (8)
(b) tXExRLEEAEERESEABEHEE -
BRADE 2 PG RESEKTES
EEERG (B2 RMES) -

(c) REZ2011E12A831BILEE  ARQ
AIFZENBARIBAESRBRAFGM
A CE So A ROt R S A R B AR TS
2 Bl A 1% 55 Uk BY 49 3,000 7 7t K. 13,000
7T (20104 © #932,00078 7T & 7,000 %8
JT) °

41. FREE
R2011F12 8 - NEE — K B2 7 [z
BARMAERE FALE ([HEADER

RIETE 472,325,000 70 - B E RN B HRK 4L
HAH - %M A R EEEEX249,0008 7T -
S REAEE 2,076,000/ T © S HNHEHE
FIE - ZMBRARIERFEHS IR

42. FBRERH
R2010F8 A31H AEEWEB XBRZ
2EBETRA - KRB A#80,975,000/5 T -
& 1 4960,975,000 8 T 2 (REFEEITE @RS
i o

MK2010F12A31H - & & E W HEGod
Strategyz 2 A B E TR A RE A YD
371,500,000 7T * & R %929,500,000 % 7T 2
REZBITEBRE M -

43. REMRER
MR - ARBREREENEAEE -
BRARBBRE NP -

44. L BEF
EFUBSECIEETHE  UWEAKEEY
255 -

45. ZETBESHKHRE

BEESMN20124F3 A28 A #/f & TI24E
BEBHREK -
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40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

45.

Related-party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Mr. Chi Wen Fu has given an undertaking to IFC to
maintain a minimum level of shareholding in the
Company as collateral of the borrowings as detailed in
Note 31.

() During the year ended 31 December 2011, Partners
Capital Securities Limited, an indirect subsidiary of the
company, received amount of approximately HK$3,000
and HK$13,000 (2010: approximately HK$32,000 and
HK$7,000) from Mr. Chi Wen Fu and Mr. Shum Sai Chit
respectively, for the financial services provided.

Contingent Assets

A subsidiary of the Group had an action against an ex-
managing director (the “Defendant”) of the subsidiary in
December 2011 for outstanding debts of approximately
HK$2,325,000, pursuant to a guarantee signed by the
Defendant in 2007. Up to the date of the financial statements,
approximately HK$249,000 has been repaid to the subsidiary,
leaving the claim standing at a sum of approximately
HK$2,076,000 and interest thereon. The subsidiary has
applied summary of judgement.

Non-cash Transactions

On 31 August 2010, the Group acquired the entire issued
share capital of Sunshine Partners at a consideration of
approximately HK$80,975,000, the consideration of
approximately HK$60,975,000 was satisfied by the issue of
ordinary shares.

On 31 December 2010, the Group acquired the entire issued
share capital of Gold Strategy at a consideration of
approximately HK$371,500,000, the consideration of
approximately HK$29,500,000 was satisfied by the issue of
ordinary shares.

Events after the Reporting Period

No significant events after reporting period of the Group are
required to be disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements.

Comparatives
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform with current year’s presentation.

Authorisation for Issue of Consolidated
Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March
2012.
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